
Dinas a Sir Abertawe

Hysbysiad o Gyfarfod

Fe'ch gwahoddir i gyfarfod

Cyd-Bwyllgor Dinas-Ranbarth Bae Abertawe
Lleoliad: Prifysgol Cymru Y Drindod Dewi Sant

Dyddiad: Dydd Gwener, 31 Awst 2018

Amser: 10.00 am

Cyn 28 Mai 2019, Cyngor Sir Gâr oedd yr awdurdod cynnal ar gyfer cyfarfodydd y 
cyd-bwyllgor, a cheir mwy o wybodaeth, gan gynnwys agendâu a chofnodion, ar ei 

wefan.



Swansea Bay City Region Joint Committee
Democratic Services Unit, 
Chief Executive’s Department,
Carmarthenshire County Council,
County Hall, 
Carmarthen SA31 1JP.

THURSDAY, 23 AUGUST 2018

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT 
COMMITTEE

I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A MEETING OF THE SWANSEA 
BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE WHICH WILL BE HELD IN  
MEETING ROOM TRL 5, - TEACHING AND LEARNING BUILDING, 
CARMARTHEN CAMPUS, UNIVERSITY OF WALES TRINITY SAINT DAVID, 
CARMARTHEN. SA31 3EP AT 10.00 AM, ON FRIDAY, 31ST AUGUST, 2018 
FOR THE TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE 
ATTACHED AGENDA

Mark James

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Democratic Officer: Gaynor Morgan
Telephone (direct line): 01267 224026
E-Mail: Gmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE 
 (Leaders of the 4 local authorities and 5 Co-optees*)

CARMARTHENSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
COUNCILLOR EMLYN DOLE 

NEATH PORT TALBOT
COUNCILLOR ROB JONES

CITY & COUNTY OF SWANSEA
COUNCILLOR ROB STEWART

PEMBROKESHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL  
 COUNCILLOR DAVID SIMPSON

CO-OPTED NON VOTING REPRESENTATIVES* 

*The Joint Committee will consider a report on appointing co-opted 
representatives under agenda item 5.

University of Wales Trinity St 
David
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health 
Board
Swansea University
Hywel Dda University Health 
Board
Chair of the Economic Strategy 
Board

Page 2



A G E N D A  

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST 

3. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE FOR A 
TWO YEAR TERM 

5 - 10

4. APPOINTMENT OF THE DEPUTY CHAIRS 11 - 16

5. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED NON VOTING  MEMBERS FOR A 
5 YEAR TERM 

17 - 22

6. APPOINTMENT OF PRINCIPAL ADVISOR & ACCOUNTABLE  
OFFICER 

23 - 26

7. ESTABLISHMENT OF PROGRAMME BOARD AND 
APPOINTMENT OF THE PROGRAMME BOARD CHAIR 

27 - 32

8. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 33 - 78

9. JOINT COMMITTEE - ANNUAL COSTS BUDGET 79 - 86

10. CITY DEAL PROJECTS UPDATE 87 - 94

11. JOINT COMMITTEE SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 95 - 98

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 
THE REPORT RELATING TO THE FOLLOWING ITEM IS  NOT 
FOR PUBLICATION AS IT CONTAINS EXEMPT INFORMATION AS 
DEFINED IN PARAGRAPH 12 OF PART 4 OF SCHEDULE 12A TO 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
(VARIATION) (WALES) ORDER 2007. IF, FOLLOWING THE 
APPLICATION OF THE PUBLIC INTEREST TEST, THE 
COMMITTEE RESOLVES PURSUANT TO THE ACT TO 
CONSIDER THIS ITEM IN PRIVATE, THE PUBLIC WILL BE 
EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING DURING SUCH 
CONSIDERATION.

13. ESTABLISHMENT OF AN ECONOMIC STRATEGY BOARD AND 
APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND MEMBERS 

99 - 116

 

Page 3



Page 4



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR OF THE COMMITTEE FOR A TWO YEAR TERM

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To appoint Cllr Rob Stewart an elected member representative to Chair the 
Joint Committee for a two year period (31st August 2018 – 30th  August 
2020).

REASONS: 

The Joint Committee Agreement for the establishment of a Joint Committee for 
the Swansea Bay City Region,  as made between the 4 local authorities,  
requires the election of the Joint Committee Chair for a two year period in the 
first instance, and reviewed annually thereafter.

Report Author:

Linda Rees Jones

Gaynor Morgan

Designation:

Joint Committee Monitoring 
Officer - Carmarthenshire 
County Council

Democratic Services Manager

Tel No. 
01267 224010
E. Mail 
Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 224026
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
 

In accordance with Schedule 1 of the Joint Committee Agreement,  ‘Terms of 
Reference of the Joint Committee’,  governance of the Joint Committee is 
undertaken by the Leaders of the four local authorities.

The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected member representative of a 
Council appointed to the Joint Committee and the Chair shall be elected for a two 
year term in the first instance, reviewed annually thereafter.

Meetings of the Shadow Joint Committee have been Chaired by  Cllr Rob Stewart, 
the Leader of Swansea Council and the Shadow Joint Committee have 
recommended that Cllr Stewart  be appointed as Chair for the first period (two 
years).

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Schedule 1 – Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee

Page 6 Page 6



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

Legal 
The procedure for Appointment of Chair of the Joint Committee is detailed within 
Schedule 1 of the Joint Agreement.

CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Leaders of the four local authorities have agreed the appointment of the Chair.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee Agreement

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wales/

Page 7Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



C:5159682v19

Schedule 1 Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee

1 Governance

1.1 Leaders of the four local authorities

2 Purpose

2.1 The Joint Committee has ultimate responsibility and accountability for decisions taken in relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal, 
in line with the visions and interests of all participating parties and the Swansea Bay City Deal document signed on 20 March 
2017.

2.2 The Joint Committee’s functions shall include:

(a) Identifying and implementing appropriate governance structures for the implementation of any projects within the Swansea 
Bay City Deal programme.  This shall include the formation of bodies corporate and any other structures which the Councils 
can lawfully establish or participate in.

(b) Agreeing and planning the overall strategy for and delivery of the programme for the Swansea Bay City Deal.

(c) Performance management of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme.

(d) Strategic communications.

(e) Monitoring of the impact of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme and reporting on this to the Councils.

(f) Authorising the Accountable Body to:

(i) Commission external support and

(ii) Oversee the delivery and management of project expenditure.

(g) Progressing a regional approach for the Swansea Bay City Region for the discharge of strategic functions.  These functions 
may include land use planning, transport planning and economic development.

(h) Approval and adoption of the Implementation Plan.

(i) Approval of any extension agreed by the Councils to the deadline for approval of the Implementation Plan.

(j) Agreeing the terms and conditions of Government Funding.

(k) Overseeing the proportion of each Council’s responsibility for borrowing to provide funding for regional projects.

(l) Reviewing performance of the Chair of the Economic Strategy Board on an annual basis.

(m) Agreeing the Annual Costs Budget.

3 Membership

3.1 Each of the Councils shall appoint its leader or equivalent as its representative as a member of the Joint Committee and all such 
members shall have full voting rights.

3.2 Each Council may appoint a deputy for its member on the Joint Committee who may attend meetings of the Joint Committee as a 
substitute for the Council’s appointed member on the Joint Committee but such deputy shall only be entitled to attend meetings of 
the Joint Committee in the absence of the Council’s appointed member.

3.3 The Joint Committee shall be entitled to co-opt on terms acceptable to the Joint Committee one representative of each of the 
following organisations to the Joint Committee as non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the 
Commencement Date.

(a) Swansea University.

(b) University of Wales Trinity St David.

(c) Hywel Dda University Health Board.

(d) Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board.

3.4 The Joint Committee may co-opt one representative of Milford Haven Port Authority to the Joint Committee as a non-voting 
member of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the Commencement Date. 

3.5 The Joint Committee may appoint additional persons to the Joint Committee as non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a 
period of five years from the Commencement Date.  The Joint Committee shall not co-opt an additional person to the Joint 
Committee unless the Joint Committee has decided that the person has expertise relevant to one or more themes in the Swansea 
Bay City Deal.

3.6 The co-option of any person as a non-voting member shall be subject to that person confirming in writing to the monitoring officer 
of the Accountable Body that he or she agrees to comply with the Co-opted Member Protocol.  No co-option shall take effect until 
such confirmation has been given.

3.7 The head of paid service, monitoring officer and section 151 officer of each of the Councils shall be entitled to attend meetings of 
the Joint Committee as an adviser and shall not have a vote.

Page 9Page 9



C:5159682v19

4 Chair

4.1 The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected member representative of a Council appointed to the Joint Committee.

4.2 The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be elected for a two year term in the first instance, reviewed annually thereafter.

4.3 The three Leaders of the remaining local authorities shall be appointed as Deputy Chairs.

5 Voting

5.1 Each member of the Joint Committee shall have one vote.  Decisions of the Joint Committee shall be made by simple majority 
vote.  In the event of an equality of votes, the Chair of the Joint Committee shall have a casting vote.

6 Conflict of Interest

6.1 To allow the Joint Committee to undertake all its functions a clear distinction shall be drawn between those involved in specific 
scheme development and those preparing recommendations on those schemes.  A robust system of declaration of conflict of 
interest shall be put in place.

6.2 Occasions shall arise where conflicts of interest preclude specific named members and/or local authorities from taking part in 
discussions which shall form views and recommendations on specific matters.  Members have an obligation to declare any such 
interests which shall then be recorded.

7 Proceedings of Meetings

7.1 The rules of procedure in the constitution of the Accountable Body shall apply to meetings of the Joint Committee.

7.2 The leaders of the Councils shall be subject to the codes of conduct of their Councils.

7.3 Co-opted members of the Joint Committee who are not members of the Councils shall be subject to the rules of conduct in 
Schedule 13 and shall sign an undertaking in the form set out at Schedule 13 to confirm that they shall abide by those rules of 
conduct.

8 Quorum

8.1 The quorum for a meeting of the Joint Committee shall be one representative from each of the four Councils.

9 Frequency

9.1 The Joint Committee shall meet monthly initially until at such point it agrees otherwise.  Additional meetings may be called by the 
Chair on at least seven clear days’ notice issued through the Regional Office.

10 Allowances

10.1 No allowances shall be paid.

11 Servicing

11.1 The Regional Office shall organise appropriate servicing for the meetings.

12 Sub groups

12.1 The Joint Committee by agreement can introduce sub-groups or Task & Finish groups for any matters which they feel would be 
better dealt with in this way.  These sub-groups shall report to the Joint Committee with any recommendations or draft papers or 
reports.

13 Letters of Support

13.1 The Joint Committee may authorise the Chair of the Joint Committee to send letters of support on behalf of the Councils to 
businesses for projects which the Joint Committee decides are complementary to the Swansea Bay City Deal.  The Joint 
Committee shall not give such authorisation to the Chair of the Joint Committee unless the Joint Committee is satisfied that the 
project for which a letter of support will be provided meets criteria agreed by the Joint Committee.

14 Review

14.1 To be reviewed annually.

 

--------------------------------------------

Page 10 Page 10



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 

APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIRS 

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To confirm that in accordance with the Joint Committee Agreement, the 
three Leaders of the remaining local authorities (those who do not hold the 
position of Chair of the Joint Committee) shall be appointed as deputy 
Chairs.

REASONS: 

The Agreement for the establishment of a Joint Committee for the Swansea Bay 
City Region, as agreed  between the 4 local authorities sets out the procedure 
for the appointment of Deputy Chairs (Schedule 1 – Terms of reference of the 
Joint Committee)

Report Author:

Linda Rees Jones

Gaynor Morgan

Designation:

Joint Committee Monitoring 
Officer - Carmarthenshire 
County Council

Democratic Services Manager - 
Carmarthenshire

Tel No. 
01267 224010
E. Mail 
Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 224026
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIRS  

Under the terms of Schedule 1 of the Joint Committee Agreement the three Leaders of the 
remaining local authorities shall be appointed as Deputy, this report seeks to formally approve 
the appointment of the 3 Deputy Chairs.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Schedule 1 – Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee

Page 12 Page 12



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

LEGAL
The Process for the appointment of Deputy Chairs is contained within Schedule 1 of the 
Joint Committee Agreement

CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

None.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee Agreement

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wale
s/

Page 13Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



C:5159682v19

Schedule 1 Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee

1 Governance

1.1 Leaders of the four local authorities

2 Purpose

2.1 The Joint Committee has ultimate responsibility and accountability for decisions taken in relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal, 
in line with the visions and interests of all participating parties and the Swansea Bay City Deal document signed on 20 March 
2017.

2.2 The Joint Committee’s functions shall include:

(a) Identifying and implementing appropriate governance structures for the implementation of any projects within the Swansea 
Bay City Deal programme.  This shall include the formation of bodies corporate and any other structures which the Councils 
can lawfully establish or participate in.

(b) Agreeing and planning the overall strategy for and delivery of the programme for the Swansea Bay City Deal.

(c) Performance management of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme.

(d) Strategic communications.

(e) Monitoring of the impact of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme and reporting on this to the Councils.

(f) Authorising the Accountable Body to:

(i) Commission external support and

(ii) Oversee the delivery and management of project expenditure.

(g) Progressing a regional approach for the Swansea Bay City Region for the discharge of strategic functions.  These functions 
may include land use planning, transport planning and economic development.

(h) Approval and adoption of the Implementation Plan.

(i) Approval of any extension agreed by the Councils to the deadline for approval of the Implementation Plan.

(j) Agreeing the terms and conditions of Government Funding.

(k) Overseeing the proportion of each Council’s responsibility for borrowing to provide funding for regional projects.

(l) Reviewing performance of the Chair of the Economic Strategy Board on an annual basis.

(m) Agreeing the Annual Costs Budget.

3 Membership

3.1 Each of the Councils shall appoint its leader or equivalent as its representative as a member of the Joint Committee and all such 
members shall have full voting rights.

3.2 Each Council may appoint a deputy for its member on the Joint Committee who may attend meetings of the Joint Committee as a 
substitute for the Council’s appointed member on the Joint Committee but such deputy shall only be entitled to attend meetings of 
the Joint Committee in the absence of the Council’s appointed member.

3.3 The Joint Committee shall be entitled to co-opt on terms acceptable to the Joint Committee one representative of each of the 
following organisations to the Joint Committee as non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the 
Commencement Date.

(a) Swansea University.

(b) University of Wales Trinity St David.

(c) Hywel Dda University Health Board.

(d) Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board.

3.4 The Joint Committee may co-opt one representative of Milford Haven Port Authority to the Joint Committee as a non-voting 
member of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the Commencement Date. 

3.5 The Joint Committee may appoint additional persons to the Joint Committee as non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a 
period of five years from the Commencement Date.  The Joint Committee shall not co-opt an additional person to the Joint 
Committee unless the Joint Committee has decided that the person has expertise relevant to one or more themes in the Swansea 
Bay City Deal.

3.6 The co-option of any person as a non-voting member shall be subject to that person confirming in writing to the monitoring officer 
of the Accountable Body that he or she agrees to comply with the Co-opted Member Protocol.  No co-option shall take effect until 
such confirmation has been given.

3.7 The head of paid service, monitoring officer and section 151 officer of each of the Councils shall be entitled to attend meetings of 
the Joint Committee as an adviser and shall not have a vote.

Page 15Page 15



C:5159682v19

4 Chair

4.1 The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be an elected member representative of a Council appointed to the Joint Committee.

4.2 The Chair of the Joint Committee shall be elected for a two year term in the first instance, reviewed annually thereafter.

4.3 The three Leaders of the remaining local authorities shall be appointed as Deputy Chairs.

5 Voting

5.1 Each member of the Joint Committee shall have one vote.  Decisions of the Joint Committee shall be made by simple majority 
vote.  In the event of an equality of votes, the Chair of the Joint Committee shall have a casting vote.

6 Conflict of Interest

6.1 To allow the Joint Committee to undertake all its functions a clear distinction shall be drawn between those involved in specific 
scheme development and those preparing recommendations on those schemes.  A robust system of declaration of conflict of 
interest shall be put in place.

6.2 Occasions shall arise where conflicts of interest preclude specific named members and/or local authorities from taking part in 
discussions which shall form views and recommendations on specific matters.  Members have an obligation to declare any such 
interests which shall then be recorded.

7 Proceedings of Meetings

7.1 The rules of procedure in the constitution of the Accountable Body shall apply to meetings of the Joint Committee.

7.2 The leaders of the Councils shall be subject to the codes of conduct of their Councils.

7.3 Co-opted members of the Joint Committee who are not members of the Councils shall be subject to the rules of conduct in 
Schedule 13 and shall sign an undertaking in the form set out at Schedule 13 to confirm that they shall abide by those rules of 
conduct.

8 Quorum

8.1 The quorum for a meeting of the Joint Committee shall be one representative from each of the four Councils.

9 Frequency

9.1 The Joint Committee shall meet monthly initially until at such point it agrees otherwise.  Additional meetings may be called by the 
Chair on at least seven clear days’ notice issued through the Regional Office.

10 Allowances

10.1 No allowances shall be paid.

11 Servicing

11.1 The Regional Office shall organise appropriate servicing for the meetings.

12 Sub groups

12.1 The Joint Committee by agreement can introduce sub-groups or Task & Finish groups for any matters which they feel would be 
better dealt with in this way.  These sub-groups shall report to the Joint Committee with any recommendations or draft papers or 
reports.

13 Letters of Support

13.1 The Joint Committee may authorise the Chair of the Joint Committee to send letters of support on behalf of the Councils to 
businesses for projects which the Joint Committee decides are complementary to the Swansea Bay City Deal.  The Joint 
Committee shall not give such authorisation to the Chair of the Joint Committee unless the Joint Committee is satisfied that the 
project for which a letter of support will be provided meets criteria agreed by the Joint Committee.

14 Review

14.1 To be reviewed annually.

 

--------------------------------------------

Page 16 Page 16



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 
APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED NON VOTING  MEMBERS FOR A 5 YEAR 

TERM 
RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

1. That the following nominees put forward by the eligible  organisations be  
appointed as co-opted non-voting members on the Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee for a 5 year period   in accordance with the terms detailed within the 
report:-
Members:
- Swansea University –Professor Richard Davies 
- University of Wales Trinity St David – Dr Jane Davidson
- Hywel Dda University Health Board – Bernadine Rees 
- Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board- Professor Andrew Davies

Named substitutes:
- Swansea University – Dr Fiona Harries 
- University of Wales Trinity St David – Gwyndaf Tobias
- Hywel Dda University Health Board – Steve Moore
- Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board – Tracey Myhill

2. that the Chair of the Economic Strategy Board be also co-opted onto the Joint 
Committee as a non-voting member.

REASONS: 
The Joint Committee Agreement allows the Joint Committee to co-opt representatives from 
outside organisations.
Report Author:

Linda Rees Jones

Gaynor Morgan

Designation:

Joint Committee Monitoring 
Officer - Carmarthenshire 
County Council

Democratic Services Manager - 
Carmarthenshire

Tel No. 
01267 224010
E. Mail 
Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 224026
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Page 17

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED NON VOTING  MEMBERS FOR A 5 YEAR 
TERM 

 
Schedule 1 of the Joint Committee Agreement stipulates the “Terms of Reference” of the Joint 
Committee and its membership. 

The agreement allows the Joint Committee to co-opt members to the Committee on terms 
acceptable to it, as follows:-

3.3 The Joint Committee shall be entitled to co-opt on terms acceptable to the Joint 
Committee one representative of each of the following organisations to the Joint Committee 
as non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the 
Commencement Date.
(a) Swansea University.
(b) University of Wales Trinity St David.
(c) Hywel Dda University Health Board.
(d) Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board.

3.4 The Joint Committee may co-opt one representative of Milford Haven Port
Authority to the Joint Committee as a non-voting member of the Joint Committee
for a period of five years from the Commencement Date.

3.5 The Joint Committee may appoint additional persons to the Joint Committee as
non-voting members of the Joint Committee for a period of five years from the
Commencement Date. The Joint Committee shall not co-opt an additional person
to the Joint Committee unless the Joint Committee has decided that the person
has expertise relevant to one or more themes in the Swansea Bay City Deal.

3.6 The co-option of any person as a non-voting member shall be subject to that
person confirming in writing to the monitoring officer of the Accountable Body that
he or she agrees to comply with the Co-opted Member Protocol. No co-option shall take effect 
until such confirmation has been given. “

The following nominations have been received by the accountable body and considered on an 
informal basis by the Shadow Joint Committee-

Main members:

Page 18 Page 18



- Swansea University –Professor Richard Davies 
- University of Wales Trinity St David – Dr Jane Davidson
- Hywel Dda University Health Board – Bernadine Rees
- Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board- Professor Andrew Davies

Named substitutes:
- Swansea University – Dr Fiona Harries 
- University of Wales Trinity St David – Gwyndaf Tobias
- Hywel Dda University Health Board –Steve Moore
- Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board – Tracey Myhill

Milford Haven Port Authority have not at this time, exercised their right for co-option on the Joint 
Committee.

The Shadow Joint Committee has also recommended that the Chair of the Economic Strategy 
Board will be co-opted onto the Joint Committee.

The nominated co-optees have confirmed in writing to the Monitoring Officer that they will 
comply with the Co-opted Member protocol attached as appendix 1 to the report and it is 
therefore recommended that the nominees be formally appointed to sit on the Joint Committee 
and sign in the presence of the monitoring officer the co-opted member protocol

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Appendix 1 – Schedule 13 Rules of Conduct of Co-opted Members 
of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board

Page 19Page 19



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

LEGAL
Co-opted non-voting members can be appointed by the Joint Committee on 5 year term. 

CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Nominations have been received in accordance with the recruitment and nomination process.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee Agreement

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wales/

Page 20 Page 20



C:5159682v19

Schedule 13 - Rules of Conduct of Co-opted Members of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board

1 These rules apply to you in your capacity as:

1.1 a co-opted member of the Joint Committee or 

1.2 the Economic Strategy Board of the Swansea Bay City Region.  

You must observe these rules whenever you attend a meeting of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board.

2 You shall conduct yourself appropriately and shall treat others with respect at meetings of the Joint Committee and the Economic 
Strategy Board.

3 You shall not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing the Joint Committee or the Economic 
Strategy Board or the Swansea Bay City Region into disrepute.

4 You shall abide by any policies and procedures adopted by the Joint Committee.

5 You shall prepare fully for meetings of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board including reading papers and seeking 
advice from the Regional Office when necessary.

6 You shall comply with any request for information from the Accountable Officer or the monitoring officer of the Accountable Body 
properly and reasonably required in connection with your role as a member of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy 
Board.

7 As part of your role you may be requested by the Joint Scrutiny Committee to provide information or to attend a meeting and 
answer questions in connection with your activities as a member Joint Committee the Economic Strategy Board or the Swansea 
Bay City Deal, as the case may be and you are expected to comply with any such request.

8 You shall not disclose confidential information nor any information relating to business of the Joint Committee or the Economic 
Strategy Board which is exempt from public access

9 You shall avoid situations where your interests will conflict with the interests of the Swansea Bay City Region.

10 You shall regard yourself as having a personal interest in any business of the Joint Committee or Economic Strategy Board if it 
relates to or is likely to affect:

10.1 Any employment or business carried on by you or any person who employs or has appointed you.

10.2 Any firm in which you are a partner or any company for which you are a remunerated director.

10.3 Any corporate body which has a place of business or land in the Swansea Bay City Region and in which you have a beneficial 
interest in a class of securities of that body that exceeds the nominal value of £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body.

10.4 Any land in which you have a beneficial interest which is in the Swansea Bay City Region.

10.5 Any land in the Swansea Bay City Region in which you have a licence to occupy for 28 days or longer.

11 You shall regard yourself as having a prejudicial interest in any business of the Joint Committee or Economic Strategy Board if 
you have a personal interest which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so 
significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public interest.

12 You shall inform the Regional Office of your personal interests so that the Regional Office may register your interests on a register 
of interests of co-opted members of the Joint Committee and the Economic Strategy Board.  You shall inform the Regional Office 
of your personal interests:

12.1 No later than 28 days after your acceptance of co-option to the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board; and 

12.2 No later than 28 days after you become aware of any new personal interests.

13 If you have a personal interest in any business which is considered at a meeting that you attend of the Joint Committee or the 
Economic Strategy Board you must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of your interest before or at the 
commencement of the consideration of the business or when the interest becomes apparent.

14 If any of the following circumstances apply in respect of an item of business of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy 
Board you shall subject to paragraph 15 withdraw from the meeting and you shall not participate in the consideration of the 
business if:

14.1 The business relates to project for which the body which nominated or appointed you to the Joint Committee or the Economic 
Strategy Board is the Delivery Lead.

14.2 You have a prejudicial interest in the business.

15 Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business considered by the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board you 
may attend a meeting of the Joint Committee or the Economic Strategy Board at which the business is considered for the purpose 
of making representations answering questions or giving evidence to the same extent that members of the public are allowed to 
attend the meeting for the purpose of making representations answering questions or giving evidence.

Page 21Page 21



C:5159682v19

Undertaking to abide by the rules of conduct

I (name of co-opted member) undertake to abide by the rules of conduct of co-opted members of the Joint Committee and the Economic 
Strategy Board of the Swansea Bay City Region

Signed ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Date -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 22 Page 22



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 

APPOINTMENT OF PRINCIPAL ADVISOR & ACCOUNTABLE 
OFFICER

 

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

In accordance with the Joint Committee Agreement, to designate the Head 
of Paid Service of Carmarthenshire County Council as Lead Chief Executive 
and to act as the Committee’s Principal Adviser and Accountable Officer to 
manage and oversee the work of the Regional Office.

REASONS: 

Part 9.2 of the Joint agreement sets out the role of the Regional Office and 
Principal Advisor.

Report Author:

Linda Rees Jones

Gaynor Morgan

Designation:

Joint Committee Monitoring 
Officer - Carmarthenshire 
County Council

Democratic Services Manager - 
Carmarthenshire

Tel No. 
01267 224010
E. Mail 
Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 224026
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

Page 23



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

APPOINTMENT OF PRINCIPAL ADVISOR & ACCOUNTABLE 
OFFICER

 

The Joint Committee Agreement stipulates that the Accountable Body “Carmarthenshire 
County Council” shall establish a ‘Regional Office’ to be responsible for the day to day 
management of matters relating to the Joint Committee and the Swansea Bay City Deal (Part 
9).

The Joint Committee agreement further states that  the Joint Committee is required to 
formally designate the Head of Paid Service of the Accountable Body as Lead Chief 
Executive to act as its principal adviser and Accountable officer to manage and oversee the 
work of the regional office staff.

 

Page 24 Page 24



DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO

Page 25Page 25



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

LEGAL
The process for the appointment of the regional office and Principal Advisor is detailed 
within Part 9 of the Joint Agreement.

CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

As part of the Joint Committee Agreement it was agreed that Carmarthenshire County Council 
would be appointed as the Accountable Body for the Swansea Bay City Deal.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee Agreement

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wale
s/

Page 26 Page 26



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 

ESTABLISHMENT OF PROGRAMME BOARD AND THE 
APPOINTMENT OF PROGRAMME BOARD CHAIR

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:
1 To formally establish a Programme Board (“PB”) in accordance with the terms of 

reference detailed within the Joint Committee Agreement (Schedule 2).

2 That Membership of the Programme Board shall consist of the Head of Paid 
Service from each of the Councils or another officer nominated by the Head of 
Paid Service.

3 That the  following additional representatives be co-opted to the Board:-
Dr Fiona Harris        -   Swansea University 
Gwyndaf Tobias         -   University of Wales Trinity Saint David 
Sarah Jennings          -   Hywel Dda University Health Board 
Sian Harrop-Griffiths -   Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health Board 

4 That Mark James, Head of Paid Service for Carmarthenshire County Council be 
appointed as Chair of the Board for the next 12 months.

REASONS: 
The Joint Committee Agreement allows the Joint Committee to establish a Programme Board 
which will report to the Joint Committee.
Report Author:

Linda Rees Jones

Gaynor Morgan

Designation:

Joint Committee Monitoring 
Officer - Carmarthenshire 
County Council
Democratic Services Manager - 
Carmarthenshire

Tel No. 
01267 224010
E. Mail 
Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 224026
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Page 27

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

ESTABLISHMENT OF PROGRAMME BOARD AND THE 
APPOINTMENT OF PROGRAMME BOARD CHAIR

 

Under the terms of the Joint Committee Agreement (Part 16) the Joint Committee shall facilitate 
the establishment of a Programme Board (“PB”). The Programme Board shall have the terms 
of reference set out in Schedule 2.

Following discussions at Shadow Joint Committee and in accordance with Schedule 2 it is 
suggested that the following additional representatives be co-opted to the Board:-

Dr Fiona Harris Swansea University
Gwyndaf Tobias University of Wales Trinity St David
Sarah Jennings Hywel Dda University Health Board
Sian Harrop-Griffiths Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board

Appointment of Chair of the Programme Board is to be agreed by the Joint Committee, it is 
therefore recommended that Mr Mark James, Head of Paid Service for Carmarthenshire County 
Council be appointed as Chair of the Board.  The Chair of the Board shall be reviewed annually.

 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Schedule 2 – Programme Board

Page 28 Page 28



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

LEGAL 

The Terms of reference for the Programme Board and its membership are contained within the 
Joint Committee Agreement.

CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

The 4 local authorities have agreed on the nomination for Chair of the Board.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee Agreement 

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wales/

Page 29Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



C:5159682v19

Schedule 2   Programme Board

1 Governance

1.1 Officer Governance

2 Purpose

2.1 The Programme Board shall have four distinct roles:

(a) Preparing recommendations on the Swansea Bay City Deal programme:

(i) Ensuring that all schemes are developed in accordance with the agreed package.

(ii) Overseeing production of business cases.

(iii) Preparing recommendations to the Joint Committee and Economic Strategy Board on all schemes whilst ensuring 
that due regard is given to all advisory/consultation bodies.

(b) Advising on the strategic direction of the Economic Strategy Board.

(c) Overseeing performance and delivery of the delivery of projects in accordance with diagram B in Error! Reference source 
not found..

(d) Working on a regional basis to improve public services especially in the areas of: economic development; transport, 
planning and strategic land use; housing and regeneration.

3 Accountable to

3.1 Joint Committee

4 Reporting

4.1 All reports prepared by the Board pertaining to Swansea Bay City Deal and regional or sub-regional matters, once approved by 
the Board, shall be submitted as draft to the Joint Committee for approval via the Regional Office.

5 Membership

5.1 The Swansea Bay City Region Programme Board shall consist of the head of paid service of each of the Councils or another 
officer nominated by the head of paid service.

5.2 The Programme Board may co-opt additional representatives to the Board.  Co-opted members may include representatives of 
the following organisations:

(a) Swansea University.

(b) University of Wales Trinity St David.

(c) Hywel Dda University Health Board.

(d) Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board.

6 Chair

6.1 The Chair shall be agreed by the Joint Committee.

6.2 The Chair shall be reviewed annually.

7 Voting/Agreement

7.1 The Programme Board shall not have any decision making Powers.

7.2 Agreement shall be reached by consensus.

7.3 Where alternative views and opinions are expressed these shall be recorded and included in any reporting process.

8 Conflicts of Interest

8.1 To allow the Programme Board to undertake all its functions a clear distinction shall be drawn between those involved in specific 
scheme development and those preparing recommendations on those schemes to the Joint Committee.  A robust system of 
declaration of conflicts of interest shall be put in place.

8.2 Occasions shall arise where conflicts of interest preclude specific named officers and/or local authorities from taking part in 
discussions which shall form views and recommendations on specific matters.  Members have an obligation to declare any such 
interests which shall then be recorded.

9 Proceedings of meetings

9.1 The chair of the Board shall arrange for minutes of the proceedings of each meeting to be taken, approved and recorded.  This 
role shall be undertaken by the Regional Office.

10 Quorum

Page 31Page 31



C:5159682v19

10.1 For the Board to agree and submit recommendations, the Councils must be represented up to a quorum equivalent to that of half 
of the representatives of the Councils on the membership of the Programme Board and must include the 4 Chief Executives or 
their representatives .

11 Frequency

11.1 The Programme Board shall meet monthly before the Joint Committee meeting and before all quarterly meetings of the Economic 
Strategy Board.

12 Allowances

12.1 No allowances shall be paid.

13 Servicing

13.1 The Regional Office shall organise appropriate servicing for the meetings.

 

Page 32 Page 32



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To approve the implementation plan in accordance with the requirements 
of the Joint Committee Agreement.

REASONS: 

To meet the requirements of clause 10 of the Joint Committee Agreement.

Report Author:

Helen Morgan

Designation:

Economic Development 
Manager 
Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 
01267 224902
E.Mail:.L 
HLMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 33

Agenda Item 8

Page 33



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN
 

Under Part 10 of the Joint Committee Agreement the Joint Committee is required to approve 
the implementation plan at its first meeting.  The Implementation Plan in order to be adopted 
must also be approved by the Welsh Government and the UK Government and both 
Governments have confirmed their approval of the Plan.

The attached implementation plan sets out the high level activities that shall support the delivery 
of the Swansea Bay City Deal and shall include details of the nature of each of the projects, 
their outcomes and benefits, key tasks and the indicative timeline and interdependencies 
between the projects.

The Plan is to be reviewed annually by the Joint Committee, with the first review taking place 
no later than one year after the approval of the Implementation Plan. Reviews in later years 
are required to take place no later than one year after the previous review.

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? Implementation Plan 

Page 34 Page 34



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

LEGAL
It is a requirement of the Joint Agreement that the Joint Committee approve the Implementation 
Plan at is first formal meeting and review annually thereafter.

FINANCE
It is a requirement of the Joint Committee to approve its Annual Budget at the first formal 
meeting and review annually thereafter.

RISK
The Programme Strategic Risks for the Swansea Bay City Deal are highlighted on Section 6 
page10 of the Implementation Plan as noted in Agenda Item 8.

STAFFING IMPLICATIONS
The staffing structure for the Regional Office currently in draft form..

Page 35Page 35



CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Committee Agreement 

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wale
s

Page 36 Page 36



Page 1 of 42  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Implementation Plan 
 
 
The Swansea Bay City Deal Implementation Plan has been developed to set out the high level 
activities that will support the delivery of the Swansea Bay City Deal (SBCD).   
 
The Plan outlines the work of the Joint Committee and supporting structures including 
programme governance, stakeholder engagement and programme implementation, 
monitoring and evaluation, as well as indicative milestones for the SBCD Programme and its 
eleven SBCD projects. 
 
The Joint Committee will review the Implementation Plan annually, with the first review to take 
place no later than one year after the approval of the Implementation Plan. Reviews in later 
years will take place no later than one year after the previous review.  
 
Date Approved: August 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 37Page 37



Page 2 of 42  

Swansea Bay City Deal  
 
1.0 Summary of Programme 
 
The Swansea Bay City Region covers the four local authority areas of Carmarthenshire, Neath 
Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and Swansea. 
 
Based on the Swansea Bay City Region Economic Regeneration Strategy 2013-2030, the 
Swansea Bay City Deal sets out an integrated, transformational approach to delivering the 
scale and nature of investment needed to support plans for growth in the Region.   
 
As outlined in the Internet Coast, the Strategic Vision for the Swansea Bay City Region is to 
create a super smart innovation region which will inform and advance solutions to some of the 
most pressing challenges of modern times in the areas of economic acceleration, smart 
manufacturing, energy, and life science and well-being.  
 
The Swansea Bay City Deal is a total investment of £1.3 billion over a period of 15 years. This 
consists of £241m from UK and Welsh Governments, £396m from other public sector funding 
and £637m from the private sector.  
 
The City Deal provides a once in a generation opportunity to further consolidate the Region’s 
role in technological innovation through creating a region of interconnected testbeds and living 
laboratories, designed not only for proof of concept but also for proof of business.   
 
Using the transformational powers of next generation digital technologies, and supported by 
a programme of tailored skills development, the City Deal will accelerate the Region’s 
innovation, technological and commercialisation capabilities to support the establishment and 
growth of local innovation businesses and inward investors.  
 
The strands of innovation, skills, and digital infrastructure create synergies across the four 
themes and eleven projects of the SBCR City Deal as outlined in the diagram below.  Together, 
these will establish the Region as a lead innovator in developing and commercialising 
solutions to some of the most pressing challenges through digital innovations and a 
programme of skills which are tailored to business needs. 

 

 

 
 

Page 38 Page 38



Page 3 of 42  

The Swansea Bay City Deal is an excellent example of working in partnership with other 

councils, universities and education providers, health boards, UK and Welsh Governments, 

and the business community.  It demonstrates what collaboration and joined-up thinking can 

achieve for our citizens.  

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 - the City Deal is a good example of 

the 5 Ways of Working promoted by the Act and will make a significant contribution to the 7 

well-being goals.   

Being a 15-year programme, the Swansea Bay City Deal provides an excellent opportunity to 

address persistent challenges such as climate change, poverty, inequality, jobs and skills and 

rurality in a transformational and preventative way. 

It is also an opportunity for the four authorities and City Deal to demonstrate how they are 
using the 5 Ways of Working to maximize their contribution to the well-being goals required 
under the Act, through a major public and private sector investment programme.   
 
The Regional Office has already been in early discussions with the Office of the Future 

Generations Commissioner in Cardiff to explore at the outset how the SBCD projects can use 

the Act as a framework at the early design stage, the idea being to strengthen the contribution 

of each SBCD project towards the 7 Goals and improve the 5 Ways of Working as the project 

is developed as part of the 5 case business model. 

The 5 Ways of Working principles will be used as a starting point for helping projects to 

consider how they can involve people in the development, who they should be collaborating 

with (unusual as well as usual stakeholders to bring a different perspective), and what the 

long-term trends are that need to be considered, or can be addressed, through the projects.  

The Office of the Future Generations Commissioner in Cardiff has developed a specific 

framework based on the Five Ways of Working and the Seven Well-being Goals.  This 

Framework will allow SBCD Project Leads to use the Act to shape the development and 

assessment of SBCD projects and to drive their design and implementation.  It has been 

shared with each of the Project Leads to assist in identifying improvements that need to be 

made to ensure the project adheres to the WFG Act and maximises the future benefits of the 

project and the Swansea Bay City Deal Programme.   

2.0 Outcomes and benefits 
 
The aims of the Swansea Bay City Deal is to create an outward-looking Region with the 
innovation capacity and infrastructure to inform and advance solutions to grand challenges 
that are both real locally and also exist in almost every region of the world.   
 
By 2035 we will: 

• Transform the regional economy 
• Establish and maintain an effective and aligned skills base 
• Create, prove and commercialise new technologies and ideas 
• Be a recognised regional centre of excellence in: 

─ Application of digital technologies 
─ Life Science and Well-being 
─ Energy 
─ Advanced manufacturing  

 
 

Page 39Page 39



Page 4 of 42  

It is estimated that, at the end of the programme period, the Swansea Bay City Deal will lead 
to:  
 

 Funding of £1.3 billion generated for interventions to support economic growth across the 
Region of which over £600 million will be private sector investment 

 11 projects 

 An overall increase to the Region’s economy of over 9,465 high skilled jobs 

 A contribution to Regional GVA of £1.8 billion 

 Investment spread across the whole of the Region to ensure all localities and citizens can 
benefit 

 
In addition to the above outcomes, the City Deal will also have wider social and economic 
benefits at both a programme wide and project sector specific level. The full detail of all 
outcomes and benefits of the City Deal will be agreed with the UK Government and Welsh 
Government and will be set out in the SBCD Monitoring and Evaluation Plan that will provide 
details of how these will be captured, monitored and evaluated over the programme period 
 
3.0 Programme Governance 

 

 

 
3.1 Joint Committee 
 
The Joint Committee comprises the four local authority Leaders of Carmarthenshire, Neath 
Port Talbot, Pembrokeshire and Swansea councils.  
 
The Joint Committee will be chaired by a local authority Leader, and it has been agreed by 
the four councils that the Leader of Swansea Council will take this on this responsibility. The 
Chair of the Joint Committee will be elected for a two year term in the first instance, reviewed 
annually thereafter. 
 
The Joint Committee has ultimate responsibility and accountability for decisions taken in 
relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal, in line with the visions and interests of all participating 
parties and the Swansea Bay City Deal document signed on 20th March, 2017. 
 
Since the signing of the Heads of Terms document, in order to maintain momentum, the Joint 
Committee has been operating in shadow form.  It is anticipated that the first formal meeting 
of this committee will take place late Summer 2018 when each of the four local authorities 
have signed the Joint Committee Agreement, the legal document which sets out how the 
councils will work together. 
 

Page 40 Page 40



Page 5 of 42  

The head of paid service, monitoring officer and section 151 officer of each of the Councils 
shall be entitled to attend meetings of the Joint Committee as an adviser and shall not have a 
vote. 
 
The Leaders shall be entitled to co-opt to the Joint Committee the Chair of the Economic 
Strategy Board (once the ESB membership has been agreed at the first formal meeting of the 
Joint Committee), and one representative each from the University of Wales Trinity Saint 
David, Swansea University, Hywel Dda University Health Board and Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg University Health Board. Voting rights will be reserved for the four local authority 
Leaders.    
 
The Joint Committee will meet on a monthly basis and, as set out in the Joint Committee 
Agreement, its functions include: 
 

 Identifying and implementing appropriate governance structures for the implementation 
of any projects within the Swansea Bay City Deal programme.  This shall include the 
formation of bodies corporate and any other structures which the Councils can lawfully 
establish or participate in; 

 Agreeing and planning the overall strategy for and delivery of the programme for the 
Swansea Bay City Deal; 

 Performance management of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme; 

 Strategic communications; 

 Monitoring of the impact of the Swansea Bay City Deal programme and reporting on this 
to the Councils; 

 Authorising the Accountable Body to commission external support and to oversee the 
delivery and management of project expenditure; 

 Progressing a regional approach for the Swansea Bay City Region for the discharge of 
strategic functions.  These functions may include land use planning, transport planning 
and economic development; 

 Approval and adoption of the Implementation Plan; 

 Approval of any extension agreed by the Councils to the deadline for approval of the 
Implementation Plan; 

 Agreeing the terms and conditions of Government Funding; 

 Overseeing the proportion of each Council’s responsibility for borrowing to provide 
funding for regional projects; 

 Reviewing performance of the Chair of the Economic Strategy Board on an annual basis; 

 Agreeing the Annual Costs Budget; 

 Following the process as set out in the Joint Committee Agreement, the Joint Committee 
shall consider the project business case and the recommendations of the Programme 
Board and the Economic Strategy Board, and shall decide whether or not to approve the 
project for submission to the UK Government and Welsh Government for approval by the 
UK Government and Welsh Government for the release of government funding for the 
project. 
 

3.2 Economic Strategy Board 
 
Reporting to the Joint Committee, the Economic Strategy Board will represent the wider 
community, including the private sector.  
 
The Economic Strategy Board will act as the voice of business and will provide strategic 
direction for the Swansea Bay City Deal, through advice to the Joint Committee on matters 
relating to the Swansea Bay City Region.  It will have a role in advising the Joint Committee 
on opportunities to strengthen the City Deal’s impact.    
 

Page 41Page 41



Page 6 of 42  

The Chair will be accountable to the Joint Committee. The Economic Strategy Board will not 
have any formal decision-making powers and it will reach agreement by consensus.  
 
The Economic Strategy Board will meet with the following frequency or as and when required: 

o Quarterly in advance of any Joint Committee meeting; and 

o When necessary to deal with business as agreed by the Chair of the Economic 
Strategy Board. 

The Regional Office will arrange for minutes of the proceedings of each meeting to be taken, 
approved and recorded. Key activities of the Economic Strategy Board include:  

 Submit strategic objectives for the Swansea Bay City Region; 

 Assess the individual Project Business Cases against the strategic aims and objectives 
of the Swansea Bay City Deal and make a recommendation to the Joint Committee on 
whether or not the Project Business Case should proceed;   

 Consider implications of a proposed withdrawal or change of Project Authority Lead and 
any proposal for a new project and provide recommendations to the Joint Committee on 
whether the new project proposed should replace the project to be withdrawn and if not 
the process for selecting new projects or reallocation of funding; 

 Monitor progress with regard to the delivery of the Swansea Bay City Deal.  
 
A preferred candidate to become Chair of the Economic Strategy Board has been selected 
following an open competition exercise. The Chair shall be appointed through a vote at the 
first formal meeting of the Joint Committee.  The process of appointing other members of the 
Economic Strategy Board has taken place through an open recruitment and nomination 
process, membership being drawn from across the wider private and public sectors.  It is 
anticipated that the Economic Strategy Board membership will be agreed through a vote at 
the first formal meeting of the Joint Committee.   
 
3.3 Programme Board 
 
The Programme Board is accountable to the Joint Committee and will consist of the head of 
paid service of each of the four Councils, or another officer nominated by the head of paid 
service. The Programme Board Chair shall be reviewed annually.  
 
The Programme Board may co-opt additional representatives to the Board.  Co-opted 
members may include representatives of Swansea University, University of Wales Trinity St 
David, Hywel Dda University Health Board and Abertawe Bro Morgannwg Health Board. 
 
It has been unanimously agreed by the councils that the Chief Executive of Carmarthenshire 
County Council will chair the Programme Board meetings.  
 
Since the signing of the Heads of Terms document, in order to maintain momentum, the 
Programme Board has been operating in shadow form.  At first formal meeting of the Joint 
Committee, scheduled to take place late summer 2018, the governance structure for the 
SBCD will be formally approved by the four councils, and the Programme Board will move into 
its formal status. 
 
The Programme Board will have four distinct roles: 

 Preparing recommendations on the Swansea Bay City Deal programme: 
─ Ensuring that all schemes are developed in accordance with the agreed package, 

analysing the financial viability, deliverability and risk of each City Deal project 
proposal; 

Page 42 Page 42



Page 7 of 42  

─ Overseeing production of business case. 

 Advising on the strategic direction of the Economic Strategy Board; 

 Overseeing performance and delivery of the delivery of projects, reviewing progress 
against agreed milestones, focusing on delivery and financial risks and identifying any 
necessary remedial action; 

 Working on a regional basis to improve public services especially in the areas of economic 
development, transport, planning and strategic land use, housing and regeneration. 

 
Meetings of the Programme Board will take place on a monthly basis before the Joint 
Committee meeting and before all quarterly meetings of the Economic Strategy Board.   
 
3.4 Accountable Body 
 
The Councils have agreed that Carmarthenshire County Council will act as the Accountable 
Body responsible for discharging the Councils’ Obligations in relation to the Swansea Bay City 
Deal in accordance with the Joint Committee Agreement. 
 
The role of the Accountable Body is to: 
 

 Act as the primary interface with Welsh Government, UK Government and any other 
funding bodies necessary to discharge the Councils' Obligations; 

 Hold and release any Government Funding in relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal and 
only to use and release such funds as agreed in accordance with the terms of such 
funding and the Joint Committee Agreement; 

 Comply with the Funding Conditions as set out in the JCA; 

 Undertake the accounting and auditing responsibilities set out in this Agreement; 

 Employ the Regional Office staff. 
 

The Joint Committee will designate the Chief Executive of the Accountable Body as Lead 
Chief Executive to act as its principal adviser and as Accountable Officer to manage and 
oversee the work of the Accountable Body and the Regional Office team. 
 
3.5 Regional Office 
 
Reporting directly to the Accountable Officer and the Joint Committee, the Regional Office 
plays a pivotal co-ordinating and supporting role and it is responsible for the day to day 
management of matters relating to the Joint Committee and the Swansea Bay City Deal.   
 
Key activities of the Regional Office include:  
 

 Strategic liaison with UK Government and Welsh Governments and policy advisors;  

 Governance support for all aspects of the City Deal governance structure, the SBCD 
Joint Committee, Programme Board and Economic Strategy Board; 

 Programme implementation co-ordination, monitoring and evaluation; 

 Undertake research, analysis and report on findings as requested by groups within the 
governance structure; 

 Strategic project co-ordination include advising on and coordinating the development 
and submission of 5 case business models for City Deal projects; 

 Liaison and engagement with government funding bodies and programmes, and with 
the Universities and Health Boards;  

 Responsibility for managing the identification, assessment, approval, monitoring and 
evaluation processes for Regional interventions and projects; 

 Communications and engagement management for the Swansea Bay City Deal; 

 Private sector involvement, business development and inward investment; 

Page 43Page 43



Page 8 of 42  

 Utilising the SBCD’s governance model to lead in the consideration and 
development of opportunities for additional capital and revenue external funding 
bids for additional funding sources to assist in the delivery of the regional activities 
which are complimentary to the SBCD. 

 
4.0 Joint Committee Work Programme 
 
A detailed work programme has been developed in Gantt format.  This will be continually 
monitored and updated to ensure progress is being made.  
 
Summarised key actions for the Shadow/Formal Joint Committee include:   
 

Category Action 

Timeframe 
(Using 
Calendar 
Year) 

Responsibility 

Governance 

JCA & SBCD governance approved at Full Council 
meeting in each of the 4 LAs 

Qtr3 2018 4 LAs  

Formal agreement of JCA & SBCD governance Qtr3 2018 Joint Committee  

Formal establishment of Economic Strategy Board Qtr3 2018 Joint Committee /UKG & WG 

Establish Joint Scrutiny Arrangements 
 

Qtr4 2018 
Accountable Body / Joint 
Committee 

Formal approval of Implementation Plan  Qtr3 2018 Joint Committee 

Finance 

Identify and agree LA borrowing requirements  Ongoing  
LAs Section 151 Officers and 
Legal Officers / Accountable 
Body / JC  

Identify funding for revenue requirements and 
agree position on NDR & Capitalisation 

Qtr4 2018 
Accountable Body / LAs 
Section 151 Officers / Joint 
Committee 

Formal agreement of process principles for flow of 
finances for Regional and Local Authority City Deal 
projects as set out in the Joint Committee 
Agreement 

Qtr4 2018 4 LAs / Joint Committee 

SBCD Project 
development 
/approval 

Agree submission process and timescales for 
projects to Governments 

Qtr4 2018 
Regional Office / 
/ UKG & WG / JC 

Agree project approval process Ongoing 
Accountable Body / 4 LAs / 
JC / UK & WG 

Legal and 
Procurement  
 

Draft SBCD JCA developed Qtr3 2018 
Accountable Body/ LAs 
Section 151 Officers and 
Legal Officers 

Develop Economic Strategy Board TOR for 
approval 

Qtr2 2018 
Accountable Body/ LAs 
Section 151 Officers and 
Legal Officers 

Develop City Deal Regional Procurement Strategy  Qtr4 2018 
Accountable Body/Regional 
Office  

Contracts Register to be established to identify 
and report on community benefits 

Qtr4 2018 
Regional Office /Accountable 
Body 

Develop Template Funding Agreement between 
the Lead Project Authority and the Project Lead to 
allow  the transfer of City Deal Funding to the 
Recipient Project Lead 

Qtr4 018 

Accountable Body/ LAs 
Section 151 Officers and 
Legal Officers/ Joint 
Committee 

Monitoring and 
Evaluation 

Programme Risk Register Developed Qtr4 2018 
Regional Office/Accountable 
Body 

Final Version Monitoring and Evaluation Plan 
agreed 

Qtr1 2019 Regional Office / UKG & WG 

Page 44 Page 44



Page 9 of 42  

Stakeholder 
Engagement 

Development and agreement of Business & 
Stakeholder Engagement Plan 

Qtr4 2018 & 
Ongoing 

Regional Office / Joint 
Committee 

Strategic 
Regional 
Functions 

Explore key strategic functions at a regional level 
that will support both the implementation of this 
Deal and wider development activity 

Ongoing 
Programme Board / Joint 
Committee / UK & WG 

 
5.0 Programme Financing 
 
The Swansea Bay City Deal is a total investment of £1.3 billion over a period of 15 years. This 
consists of £241m from UK and Welsh Governments, £396m from other public sector funding 
and £637m from the private sector.  

 
 

The Joint Committee Agreement sets out details of the allocation of Government funding and 
private and public funding contributions for each project.  The proportion of Government 
funding shall be in accordance with the details set out in the JCA Schedule 7 (table shown 
below) unless the Councils agree to vary this. 
 

 
 

Page 45Page 45



Page 10 of 42  

The Joint Committee has ultimate responsibility and accountability for decisions taken in 
relation to the Swansea Bay City Deal.  It is the role of Programme Board to ensure that all 
schemes are developed in accordance with the agreed package, analysing the financial 
viability, deliverability and risk of each City Deal project proposal and to report to the ESB and 
Joint Committee.    
 
Private Sector investment is fundamental to the overall success of the Deal.  There is a 

requirement for each City Deal project to have in place from the outset a credible and robust 

financial profile.  All letters confirming both private and public sector match funding are to be 

in place for the project prior to City Deal funding approved, confirming amount and timing as 

set out in the project’s approved financial profile.  The Project Authority Lead and Project 

Delivery Lead are to put in place effective project monitoring processes.  Funding agreements 

will be signed at the outset between Project Authority Leads and Project Delivery Leads setting 

out funding conditions. 

For all projects, in addition to the 5 case model assessment process, the Accountable Body 
will undertake an assessment of the Project’s Financial Profile to check that private and public 
sector contribution/s are in line with that set out in the initial project business case from the 
Project Lead.  All variances and changes, including implications of these, will be reported to 
the PB, ESB and JC for consideration and decision of course of action as deemed necessary 
before City Deal funding is approved for the project.    
 
It is the aim of the Swansea Bay City Deal that all projects will be delivered in five years in 
order to maximise the full benefits realisation of the operational schemes during the lifetime of 
City Deal funding which is to be released to the Region from the governments over a fifteen-
year period.  
 
As set out in the JCA, making decisions on borrowing and on finding other sources of funding 
other than Government Funding for projects is a matter reserved to the Councils.  Each 
Council shall be responsible for borrowing or providing other funding for projects located in its 
area.  If a project is located in the areas of more than one Council, each of the Councils in 
whose area the project is located may agree that borrowing or providing other funding should 
be shared between all of the Councils in whose areas the project is located equally or in 
proportions agreed by all of the Councils in whose areas the project is located.       

The Programme Board will ensure that all schemes are developed in accordance with the 
agreed package and prepare recommendations to Joint Committee on all schemes. 

The Joint Committee is responsible for overseeing the proportion of each Council’s 
responsibility for borrowing to provide funding for regional projects.  The capital borrowing (in 
respect of the Government funded element) for the SBCD projects will be re-paid by identified 
Government funds (UK & Welsh Government) over the 15 year period.  

The exact level of borrowing and the structure and terms of the borrowing is yet to be 
confirmed at this point in time, however it will be calculated based on the amount required per 
relevant local authority, and will be in line with the individual local authority internal 
requirements.  This is being determined by the four Section 151 Officers of the four local 
authorities.  All borrowing will be agreed based on the principles of the Prudential Code and 
Treasury Management Policy and Strategy for each Authority. When further details of the 
investments required for each project are known, a full business case appraisal for each 
individual project will be completed and submitted to the relevant local authority for approval 
before submission to the Joint Committee. These full business cases will include the detailed 
funding proposals and requirements of the local authority.   

Page 46 Page 46



Page 11 of 42  

The Welsh Government has agreed (in principle) that the authorities in the SBCD region will 
be allowed to retain 50% of the additional net yield in the non-domestic rates generated by the 
11 projects which are to be delivered by the Deal. The basis of the allocation of the rates 
generated within the SBCD is yet to be agreed at this point in time.  This is being negotiated 
by the four Section 151 Officers of the four local authorities. Within the Joint Agreement 
appendices there is additional information that provides authorities with the support to utilise 
funding flexibilities.   

  
Once UK Government and Welsh Government have approved release of City Deal funding 
for individual CD projects, this funding will be released to the Region via the Accountable 
Body who, in accordance with the Joint Committee Agreement, will distribute the funds to the 
regional local authorities as demonstrated in the following flow charts: 
 
CITY DEAL FLOW OF FINANCES (Regional Projects) 
 

 

 

CITY DEAL FLOW OF FINANCES (Local Authority Projects) 

 

 
 
 

Page 47Page 47



Page 12 of 42  

6.0 Strategic Programme Risks 
 
Each Swansea Bay City Deal project will carry its associated risks which will be mitigated 
throughout the application and delivery process.  A detailed risk analysis will be undertaken 
for all projects by the Project Delivery Lead as part of the development of the 5 case business 
model process, with a project specific Risk Register established to assist in the ongoing 
management and mitigation of all risks.   
 
A detailed Programme Risk Register has been developed for the Swansea Bay City Deal 
Programme and will be managed, revised and updated by the Regional Office and will be 
reviewed by the Programme Board and Joint Committee.  A summary of the most significant 
programme risks are outlined in the table below.  It should be noted that these risks are shown 
at this point in time of writing and that the status of each risk will alter along the length of the 
Programme.   
 

Category Risk Probability 
Scale 

Low 1:5 
High 

Impact 
Scale 

Low 1:5 
High 

Mitigation 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

Delay in approval 
of Joint 
Committee 
Agreement 

1 1 JCA already formally approved by each of the four LAs 
at meetings of the Full Council.  JCA on agenda for 
sign-off at first formal JC meeting anticipated end of 
Summer 18. 

Delay in approval 
of 
Implementation 
Plan 

1 1 IP drafted by RO. Review of draft versions IP by both 
Govs and speedy iterative process have enabled final 
version. IP on agenda for sign-off at first formal JC 
meeting anticipated end of Summer 18. 

Delay in 
establishment of 
Economic 
Strategy Board  

1 1 Preferred candidate for ESB Chair has been selected 
and the full ESB membership will be confirmed at the 
first formal meeting of the JC. 

Im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

Delay in 
development of 
Business Cases 
by Project Leads 

2 3 Regional Team in place to co-ordinate submission of 
business cases by the Project Leads.  Gantt Chart 
developed to assist in mapping out project 
development, submission and approval process 
timelines.  Programme Board and ESB in place to 
oversee the development of business cases.  Joint 
Committee Agreement in place which sets out agreed 
processes for deciding on any actions required. 

Delay in approval 
of City Deal 
Business Cases 

2 3 JCA and governance structure to be formalised in 
August 18.  Regional Project Authority Leads / Project 
Authority Leads will have early sight of relevant draft 
version business cases for comment/feedback. 
Iterative process with governments for review of draft 
business cases in place which aids speedier decision. 
Agreement of submission process and timescales for 
review of final business plans with both governments. 

Business case is 
not approved / 
project falls  

3 4 Iterative business case review process. Open and 
regular dialogue between Accountable Body, RO, 
Project Delivery Lead and Project Lead. . Early 
identification of potential trigger points and any 
potential mitigating/rectifying actions. If irreconcilable, 
Joint Committee Agreement in place which sets out 
agreed processes for identifying new project(s) to 
achieve the outcomes of the City Deal. 

Slippage in 
Programme 
delivery  

2 3 Establish robust monitoring and evaluation framework 
to ensure programme and project delivery remains 
within agreed timescales and to ensure that all targeted 

Page 48 Page 48



Page 13 of 42  

Category Risk Probability 
Scale 

Low 1:5 
High 

Impact 
Scale 

Low 1:5 
High 

Mitigation 

project outputs and outcomes will be achieved. 
Regional Team in place to undertake monitoring role. 
Accountable Body/Section 151 officers will undertake 
programme level financial profiling to ensure borrowing 
and distribution of City Deal funding is reflective of 
programme delivery. 

O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 

Withdrawal of 
Local Authority 

1 2 JCA signed by each LA which clearly sets out agreed 
provisions for such a scenario. 

Failure to 
engage relevant 
stakeholders 
including private 
sector to enable 
wider 
development of 
the programme 

2 1 Economic Strategy Board in place from the outset 
providing private sector involvement. Key stakeholders 
already engaged. SBCD Business Engagement Officer 
and Communications Officer employed in the RO to 
ensure early and ongoing involvement through SBCD 
Business Engagement & Communication Plan.   

Failure to 
achieve agreed 
outcomes / 
outputs in agreed 
timeframe 

3 4 Develop robust baseline. Establish monitoring and 
evaluation framework including key milestones and 
timescales for review. Set up quarterly meetings with 
Project Delivery Leads and Project Authority Leads to 
discuss progress. Regular performance reporting to 
Programme Board, ESB and Joint Committee to 
enable decision on any mitigating actions deemed 
necessary to keep the programme on track.  

F
in

an
ci

al
 

Failure to identify 
/ secure City 
Deal revenue 
funding  

2 2 Ongoing dialogue with governments underway to 
identify potential solutions. 

Private Sector 
funding 
contribution/s not 
in line with initial 
business case 
projections  

3 4 For all projects, in addition to the 5 case model 
assessment, the Accountable Body will undertake an 
assessment of the Project’s Financial profile to check 
that the private sector contribution is in line with the 
initial business case financial projections. Any 
implications resulting from variance to be reported to 
PB, ESB and JC for action. 

EU match 
funding 
contributions 
contribution/s not 
in line with initial 
business case 
projections 

3 4 For all projects, in addition to the 5 case model 
assessment, the Accountable Body will undertake an 
assessment of the Project’s Financial profile to check 
that the private sector contribution is in line with the 
initial business case financial projections. Any 
implications resulting from variance to be reported to 
PB, ESB and JC for action.  RO in dialogue with 
WEFO. 

Failure of 
projects to 
secure 
committed full 
funding  package 
(cap & rev) 

2 5 Credible and robust financial profiles need to be in 
place for each City Deal Project from the outset.  All 
Letters Confirmation Match Funding to be in place for 
the project before City Deal funding is approved, 
confirming amount and timing as set out in the project’s 
financial profile. Timely monitoring and review following 
approval of five case business plan. Robust and timely 
procurement activity must be planned, executed and 
monitored. All Project Authority Leads to put in place 
effective monitoring and evaluation processes. 
.Funding agreements signed between Project Authority 
Lead and Project Lead. 

 

Page 49Page 49



Page 14 of 42  

7.0 Business Case Assessment Process  
 
The need to get the best possible value from spending public money will always remain a 
constant for those entrusted with spending decisions.  To this end, all City Deal business cases 
must be developed using the HM Treasury and Welsh Government’s Five Case Model, an 
approach which is both scalable and proportionate. It is recognised as best practice and is the 
Treasury’s standard methodology. 
 
The business case, both as a product and a process, provides decision makers, stakeholders 
and the public with a management tool for evidence based and transparent decision making 
and a framework for the delivery, management and performance monitoring of the resultant 
scheme. 
 
Each business case in support of SBCD project must evidence:  
 

 Strategic Case - the intervention is supported by a compelling case for change that 
provides holistic fit with other parts of the organisation and public sector 
 

 Economic Case - the intervention represent best public value (to the UK as a whole) 
 

 Commercial Case - the proposed Deal is attractive to the market place, can be procured 
and is commercially viable 
 

 Financial Case - the proposed spend is affordable  
 

 Management Case - that what is required from all parties is achievable  
 
As set out in the Joint Committee Agreement, the Project Business Case shall include a 
Resolution of the Project Authority Lead and all Councils in whose area the project shall take 
place that they approve the submission of the Project Business case. 

The Regional Office shall have day to day responsibility for managing the assessment process 
for projects.   
 
To assist a speedier assessment process, the UK Government and Welsh Government have 
agreed an informal iterative review process for assessing draft versions of business cases in 
order to assist Project Leads in the production of complete full business cases which are 
appropriate for 5 case formal review process.  
 
On completion of the final draft business case, and following approval from the respective 
Regional/Project Authority Lead(s), full business cases for each of the 11 projects will undergo 
assessment by the Regional Office and Accountable Body before being considered by the 
respective City Deal governance structures.  After approval by the Joint Committee the project 
business case will be forwarded to the UK Government and Welsh Government for approval 
to release City Deal government project funding to the Accountable Body.  
 
Regional Office Project Assessment Criteria 
 
1. Fit with the WG Future Well-being Act  

 Clear evidence of the 5 Ways of Working; 

 Clear evidence of contributing to Well-being goals; 

 Clear evidence of alignment with local well-being plans.  

 

Page 50 Page 50



Page 15 of 42  

2. Strategic Fit 
 

 Alignment with the strategic aims and objectives of the Swansea Bay City Deal and wider 
regeneration regional strategy and demonstrate the Region’s ambitions; 

 Synergies with other Swansea Bay City Deal projects demonstrated. 
 
3.  Financial  

 Credible and robust financial profile with cost breakdown is in place for each City Deal 

project before funding approval; 

 Private Sector contribution/s are as set out in the Initial Business Case financial projections 

for the project and in the Heads of Terms document; 

 All letters confirming Project Match Funding from all sources must be in place before City 

Deal funding is approved - confirming amount/s and timing as set out in the project’s 

Financial Profile - for public and private sectors (and any dependencies); 

 Evidence of ongoing project sustainability for a period of at least the 15-year SBCD 

Programme Period to include a credible operational/commercial case that sets out full 

details on proposed income flows and sources (and any dependencies). 

4.  Deliverability 

 Robust Governance & Partnership approach; 

 Project Management - Team and Experience;  

 Clear project plan. 
 
5.  Outputs and Outcomes 

 SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, results-based, time-bound) project outcomes 
with associated baseline data is in place in line with overall City Deal Plan; 

 Projects should clearly establish intended outputs with a clear definition of what success 
would look like. 

 
6.  Risk Management 

 Project Risk Register and risk management process in place - identification, management 
and mitigation of all risks.  

 
7. Procurement  
 

 Projects must set out how they will procure all project activity in line with the Swansea Bay 

City Deal Procurement Strategy; 

 Wider Community Benefits demonstrated in the business case e.g. Local Supply Chain 

supported, apprenticeships etc. 

8.  Project Monitoring & Evaluation   

 All Project Leads to have set out clear and effective Monitoring and Evaluation Plan with 

process identified;  

 Key delivery steps and associated milestones demonstrated; 

 Detailed proposal for how and when all outputs and outcomes will be measured and 
reported to the Project Lead Authority and the Regional Office; 

 Evaluation proposal; 

 Exit Strategy in place. 
 

Page 51Page 51



Page 16 of 42  

The four local authorities have agreed the following process for the formal assessment of final 
SBCD business cases:  
 

 
 
 
8.0 SBCD Programme Monitoring and Reporting 
 
The Regional Office will have day to day responsibility for managing the monitoring and 
evaluation processes for projects.  A robust, monitoring and evaluation plan will be developed 
in conjunction with the UK and Welsh Governments, and agreed by the Joint Committee, 
which sets out the proposed approach to evaluating the impact of delivery of Swansea Bay 

Page 52 Page 52



Page 17 of 42  

City Deal at programme level.  This will include detail on the how, what, and when reporting 
by the Project Delivery Leads and Project Authority Lead will take place.   
 
Key actions include: 
 

 Developing a robust baseline; 

 Establishing monitoring and evaluation framework including key milestone and timescales 
for review; 

 Set up quarterly meetings with Project Delivery Leads and Regional/Project Authority 
Leads to discuss progress; 

 Regular performance reporting to Programme Board, Economic Strategy Board and Joint 
Committee. 
 

All programme level reporting in relation to the City Deal and its associated projects will follow 
a process that has been agreed by the four local authorities.  This is set out in the following 
chart: 
 

 
 

Page 53Page 53



Page 18 of 42  

SBCD Joint Scrutiny Committee 
 
As set out in the Joint Committee Agreement, the Joint Scrutiny Committee will provide a 
scrutiny function to ensure greater public accountability over decisions made by the Joint 
Committee and any of its sub-committees and related entities.  It has been agreed by the four 
Councils that Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council will be the lead authority to take 
responsibility for the scrutiny function responsibility and its administration. 
 
The membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will consist of 12 members. Each of the 
Councils shall nominate three members for appointment to the Joint Scrutiny Committee. The 
member nominated by each Council shall be an elected member of that Council but shall not 
be a member of that Council’s executive and shall not be a member of the Joint Committee.  
The Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Committee shall not be a member of the Council which is 
providing the Chair of the Joint Committee.  
 
The role of the Joint Scrutiny Committee is to provide advice, challenge and support to the 
Joint Committee. The full terms and reference for the Joint Scrutiny Committee are set out in 
the Joint Committee Agreement.   
 
The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be required to:  

 Review and scrutinise the Joint Committee’s financial affairs;  

 Review and assess the Joint Committee’s risk management, internal control and 
corporate governance arrangements;  

 Review and assess the economy, efficiency and effectiveness with which resources have 
been used; 

 Make reports and recommendations to the Joint Committee in relation to the points in 1 
and 3 above.  

 
9.0 Swansea Bay City Deal Project Portfolio  
 
The Swansea Bay City Deal comprises eleven projects across the four inter-related themes. 
Each thematic project has been developed to integrate with existing cluster strengths and 
infrastructure, supporting development of next generation services and products.  In parallel, 
rollout of cutting-edge digital infrastructure will be accelerated to support exploitation of new 
technologies and capabilities. This will be underpinned by the Swansea Bay City Deal Skills 
& Talent Initiative that will be constantly attuned to emerging and evolving sectors’ needs.  
 

 

Page 54 Page 54



Page 19 of 42  

9.1 SBCD Theme - Internet of Economic Acceleration 

 

Skills and Talent 

Regional 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Total Cost £30,000,000 City Deal:  £10,000,000 

Description The Skills and Talent initiative, being led by the South West Wales Regional & Skills 
Partnership, will be a key component in ensuring that local people and businesses have the 
appropriate skills to benefit from each of the City Deal projects. 

Key 
Milestones 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft Business Plan for consideration by RLSP Board Qtr3 2017  

Initial draft Skills and Talent Business Plan shared with  
UKG/WG 

Qtr4 2017  

Final review of draft business case by UKG / WG Qtr2 2019  

Business Plan submitted to the 4 Councils Qtr2 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme Board 
and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to the 
UKG/WG 

 
Qtr2 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the project Qtr3 2019 

Risks Description  
 

Mitigation 

Operational   

Risk of partners disengaging from the 
project could pose a risk to the 
achievement of some of the delivery 
outputs  

The structure and constitution of the City Deal and the 
robust Partnership within the RLSP. All partners are 
fully committed to the project and the size and number 
of partners from all sectors significantly reduces this 
risk. Only if a whole sector were to withdraw would this 
risk be classed as high. 
 

Lead times in the development of a 
new skills offer in the region/ 
identifying the key skills and ensuring 
that Welsh Government agree to 
include the courses within future 
provision within FE and 
apprenticeship 
 

As one of the WG’s three Regional Skills Partnerships, 
the RLSP is well placed to support this development, 
with its annual submission of a regional employment 
and skills plan which is utilised to directly affect the 
allocation of funding to FE and apprenticeship 
provision. 

Project activity overlapping or 
duplicating existing provision within 
the region 

The RLSP provides a platform to work across the public; 
private and education system. This partnership will 
ensure that there is an appropriate and timely response 
to industry and emerging project demands, remaining 
relevant and effective while avoiding duplication or 
missed opportunities. 
 

Page 55Page 55



Page 20 of 42  

Implementation  

Project management, leadership and 
control of the project to deliver the 
stated activities and results 

Management, leadership and control of the project will 
benefit from the experience and expertise which exists 
across the partnership. The partnership will establish 
clear lines of management responsibility, reporting and 
accountability from the outset. 

Project does not meet the needs of 
the other SBCD projects 

Early engagement with each of the 10 SBCD Project 
Leads has taken place to map out skills need, and will 
continue alongside the design and delivery stages of 
each. 

Slippage to the project timescales  It is intended that management of all work detailed in 
the action plan will be subject to a regular, on-going 
process of performance review by the RLSP Board in 
order to maintain progress in relation to the projected 
outputs and timelines. Where required this will be 
reported through the SBCD Programme Governance 
Structure.  

Financial 

Significant changes to the match 
funding package  

The level of match funding levered will be monitored on 
a quarterly basis by the Project Delivery Lead and 
Project Local Authority Lead to ensure that it is line with 
the agreed financial profile. 

Organisational and financial risks This level of experience within the organisations 
involved in the Partnership is such that relatively high 
levels of knowledge, skills and experience in financial 
management and probity can be clearly demonstrated.  
Coupled with regular performance review will serve to 
minimise the financial risks associated with the project. 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model.  

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 16,000,000 

Private 500,000 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,000,000 

City 
Deal 

1,000,000 1,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 10,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

2,500,000 5,000,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 7,500,000 30,000,000 

Constraints State Aid rules as they apply 

Dependencies Continued Core Funding from Welsh Government for the RLSP 
Revenue support for the project from the local authorities 

  

Digital Infrastructure 

Regional 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Total Cost £55,000,000 City Deal  £25,000,000 

Page 56 Page 56



Page 21 of 42  

Description A regional state of the art digital infrastructure will be implemented to support each of the City 
Deal strategic themes and projects.  The project will consist of three elements namely: 
Transport Corridor, Rural and Connected City. Together these components will: 

 Create digital infrastructure including gigabit fibre and the establishment of 5G testbeds 
that will enable  innovation and entrepreneurship within the region 

 Expand the provision of 4G and Wi-Fi capabilities to benefit both urban and rural areas of 
the region 

 Develop digital infrastructure for key sectors including energy, manufacturing and life 
sciences  
 

Key 
Milestones 
 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development  

Project Scope Set Qtr1 2018  

Tender for consultant to develop full 5 case business plan based on 
agreed scope / outline proposal 

Qtr3 2018 

Consultant appointed to develop full 5 case business plan based on 
agreed scope / outline proposal 

Qtr3 2018 

Initial draft version 5 case business plan shared with UKG / WG Qtr4 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to 4 Councils Qtr2 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to the 
UKG/WG 

 
Qtr2 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the project Qtr3 2019 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting draft 
5 case model 
 

Description  Mitigation 

Unsuccessful project delivery 
/Slippage in Project delivery  

Experienced project management and project delivery 
team in place from the outset. Project Implementation 
Plan to be agreed by all partners. Established robust 
monitoring and evaluation framework at project 
development stage to ensure programme and project 
delivery remains within agreed timescales and to 
ensure that all targeted project outputs and outcomes 
will be achieved.  

Lack of Commercial Confidence  Robust governance structure will need to in place from 
the outset to carefully manage both governance and 
commercial risks.  

Project not sustainable  Project will develop a sustainable business model. 
Ongoing dialogue with key government, public sector 
officers and private sector organisations key. 
Sustainability is an integral part of this project and early 
engagement with operators/providers is embedded 
within the proposals.  

Failure to secure full funding package  The digital plan will be implemented through partner(s) 
through a competitive tendering process. 

Non-compliance with State Aid 
Regulation and Public Procurement 
Rules  

Use is made of existing compliant procurement 
frameworks to enable speedier delivery. Different 
aspects of the project might entail different approaches.  

Engagement/partnership with 
industry is unsuccessful.  

Early engagement already taken place with private 
sector and wider stakeholders as part of City Deal 
projects. Dialogue will be on-going via the projects. 
Dedicated Project Manager in place.   
 

Page 57Page 57



Page 22 of 42  

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public       

Private 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 30,000,000 

City 
Deal 

5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 25,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

11,000,000 11,000,000 11,000,000 11,000,000 11,000,000 55,000,000 

Dependencies The majority of this project is based around requirements of the other City Deal projects. 
Roll-out of UK and Wales wide ICT policies and programmes. 
Alignment with Superfast Cymru is an important requirement. 
Engagement with service providers to gain an understanding of future plans and potential 
opportunities for the SBCD and Digital Infrastructure proposals is vital. 
The expectation is that the digital plan will be implemented through partner(s) through a 
competitive tendering process. 

  

Swansea City & Waterfront Digital District 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Swansea Council 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

Swansea Council 

Total Cost £174,673,000 City Deal  £50,000,000 

Description The Swansea City and Waterfront Digital District will capitalise on the next generation 
connectivity available within the region, developing a vibrant and prosperous City Centre that 
facilitates the growth of high value ICT and digitally enabled sectors. The project will include 
incubation space and co-working areas for start-ups and small businesses alongside global 
enterprise; a new City Centre Business District and a Digital Square and Arena, providing 
conference facilities and major event space for tech industries. 

Key Milestones 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development  

Initial draft business case shared with UK/WG Qtr4 2017  

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG  Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to 4 Councils Qtr2 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission 
to the UKG/WG 

Qtr2 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding for the project Qtr3 2019 

Project Development 

Milestone Activity - Box Village 

Planning Submission Qtr2 2018 

Detailed Design Qtr3 2018 

Tender and Contractor Procurement Qtr3 2018 

Construction Qtr1 2019 

Fit Out Qtr4 2019 

Completion and Occupation Qtr4 2019 

Milestone Activity - Innovation Precinct  

Planning Submission Qtr4 2019 

Detailed Design Qtr4 2019 

Page 58 Page 58



Page 23 of 42  

Tender and Contractor Procurement Qtr1 2020 

Construction Qtr4 2021 

Fit Out Qtr1 2022 

Completion and Occupation Qtr1 2022 

Milestone Activity - Digital Village 

Planning Submission Qtr3 2018 

Detailed Design Qtr2 2018 

Tender and Contractor Procurement Qtr4 2018 

Construction Qtr3 2020 

Fit Out Qtr4 2020 

Completion and Occupation Qtr4 2020 

Milestone Activity - Digital Square & Arena  

Outline planning consent granted  Qtr2 2017 

End of Design Stage 2 Qtr4 2017 

Arena Operator Contract Signed Qtr1 2018 

Contractor Procurement Qtr3 2018 

Construction  Qtr4 2020  

Arena Opening Qtr4 2020 

Risks 
 

 

 

Description  
 

Mitigation 

Development 

Failure to obtain relevant approvals 
 

All approval processes for the project will be identified 
will be applied for with sufficient time to prevent project 
timeline impacts. Dedicated team and organisation 
structure will further mitigate this risk. In addition, expert 
advice will be sought to ensure that all required 
approvals are captured. 

Failure to agree project specification 
 

Project will continue to work extensively with all key 
stakeholders to ensure that agreement on specification 
is achieved as a priority before progressing the project 
further. 

Commercial floor space and other 
facilities do not meet the needs of 
start-ups and tech based businesses 
 
 

Project consulted with members of the targeted 
industries to establish needs. The project to continue to 
liaise with members of the industry to ensure that the 
evolving project delivers on key requirements at every 
stage, and to continuously monitor and proactively 
engage with the industry to ensure that needs are 
appropriately met in the operational phase on an 
ongoing basis. 

Financial 
Failure to secure funding package Swansea Council and University of Wales Trinity St 

David funding is committed.  Ensure credible and robust 
detailed business plan and financial profile is in place at 
outset. Written letters confirming all sources of funding 
to be in place at approval stage 

Rise in construction costs Ensure detailed costs are in place for the entire project 
at the outset.  Allow for a suitable contingency.  Detailed 
tender bids. Ensure experienced project manager is in 
place. 

Implementation 

Delays in construction programme/ 
Project slippage 

Ensure project team in place using recognised project 
management tools to enable the developments to be 
delivered on time. The project to proactively monitor 
construction progress and to work extensively with the 

Page 59Page 59



Page 24 of 42  

principal contractor to minimise any disruption to the 
programme 

Temporary traffic management failing Project will ensure TM contractor aware of sensitivity of 
route and applies appropriate resources.  Advance 
communications to 1st Responders to take into account 
the impact on emergency services and providing 
advance notice of restrictions Involve Traffic Team in a 
timely manner. Regular review of programme and 
timely information to Client. 

Operational 

The commercial floor space and 
other facilities do not meet the needs 
of start-ups and tech based 
businesses 

Project continues to consult with members of the 
targeted industries to establish needs and to ensure that 
the evolving project delivers on key requirements at 
every stage.  Project to continuously monitor and 
proactively engage with the industry to ensure that 
needs are appropriately met in the operational phase on 
an ongoing basis 

Lower than expected demand The project is working extensively with potential tenants 
and occupiers to ensure that initial demand is sufficient. 
In addition, project will be focused on supporting growth 
and successfully managing the success of the 
operational phase.  Project to allocate sufficient 
resource to ensure that any period of lower than 
expected demand is successfully bridged 

Failure to provide knowledge transfer 
and commercial opportunities 

The University to adequately resource teams to ensure 
that knowledge transfer and the development of 
commercial opportunities are given adequate priority in 
terms of delivery 

Focus on physical property aspects 
and the wider economic needs to 
support business creation and growth 
are not achieved 

The projects are being developed in consultation with a 
wide range of the public and private sector partners to 
understand demand in the market. The schemes are 
also designed to meet the current and future needs of 
an innovative business community. 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public 18,851,311 18,851,311 18,851,312 18,851,312 18,851,312 94,256,558 

Private 4,780,000 4,780,000 4,780,000 4,780,000 4,780,000. 23,900,000 

City 
Deal 

3,609,010  3,163,912  10,917,362  20,077,641  12,232,075 50,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

27,240,321 26,795,223 34,548,674 43,708,953 35,863,387 168,156,558 

Dependencies Planning consents 
This project forms part of the overall Swansea Central regeneration plan.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 60 Page 60



Page 25 of 42  

Yr Egin - Creative Digital Cluster 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

University of Wales: Trinity Saint David 

Total Cost £24,294,000 City Deal  £5,000,000 

Description Yr Egin will create a digital and creative industry cluster in Carmarthen, joined by S4C as the 
key anchor tenant alongside other digital and creative media SMEs as tenants. The centre will 
create a clustering effect which will create major and positive change to the creative and digital 
economy of Wales. This development will include business accelerator facilities, incubation, as 
well as shared spaces for interaction between each of the tenants, driving entrepreneurial 
development. 

Key Milestones Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

 Business Case Development 

Initial draft version 5 case business plan shared with UKG / WG Qtr4 2017 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG/WG Qtr4 2018 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 

Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to 

the UKG/WG 

Qtr1 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding for the 
project 

Qtr1 2019 

Project Development 

Phase 1 Practical Completion of Construction Qtr3 2018 

Phase 2 Procurement of Multi-Dis Design Team to take design to RIBA 
Stage 3 

Qtr4 2018 

Phase 2 Stage 1 ECI contractor appointment  Qtr4 2018 

Phase 2 RIBA Stage 3 Sign off Qtr2 2019 

Phase 2 RIBA Stage 4 Detailed Design and Pre-Planning Application 
Discussions 

Qtr2 2019 

Phase 2 Planning Submission Qtr3 2019 

Phase 2 Stage 2 Contractor Appointment Qtr3 2019 

Phase 2 Commencement of Construction Qtr4 2019 

Phase 2 Fit Out Qtr1 2021 

Phase 2 Practical Completion and Occupation Qtr1 2021 

Risks Description  
 

Mitigation 

Development 

Failure to agree project specification The University will work extensively with all key 
stakeholders, including potential occupiers to ensure 
that agreement on specification is achieved as a priority 
before progressing the project further. 

Failure to deliver the wider benefits 
identified in the business case 

The project’s Monitoring and Evaluation Plan to set out 
clear proposals of how and when the Project Lead is 
going to monitor the impact of the wider benefits as set 
out in the 5 case business model for Yr Egin. Project M 
& E Plans to be in place before funding is released to 
the project.  Quarterly reporting to the Regional Office 
by the Project Lead and Local Authority Leads to 

Page 61Page 61



Page 26 of 42  

highlight all changes to outputs, outcomes and 
milestones.  

Implementation 

Failure to obtain relevant approvals All approval processes for the project will be identified 
and approvals will be applied for with sufficient time to 
prevent project timeline impacts. The University’s 
existing dedicated team and organisation structure will 
further mitigate this risk. 

Delays in construction programme This is in 2 phases, the first of which must be completed 
as a priority to satisfy S4C’s timescales. This 2-phase 
approach will reduce the risk of delays & enable a focus 
on delivering Phase 1. University to work closely with 
delivery partner for Phase 2 to ensure that any delays in 
construction programme are mitigated and avoided. 

Skills and capacity issues in terms of 
project delivery 

The core project delivery team has been specifically 
appointed and retained to ensure that enough skill and 
capacity is available to deliver the Yr Egin project. The 
University will appoint third party specialists as required 
and will ensure that the project procurement process is 
competitive to encourage suppliers to engage. 

Operational 

Lower than expected demand The University has already seen a strong uptake with 
lettable space in Phase 1 and will work extensively to 
engage with prospective tenants for Phase 2. The 
University to also continuously review rent and service 
charge costs to ensure that Yr Egin remains highly 
competitive  

Failure to provide knowledge 
transfer and commercial 
opportunities 

The University has extensive experience and expertise 
in both knowledge transfer and the development of 
commercial opportunities. The University will 
adequately resource teams to ensure that both of these 
aspects are given adequate priority in terms of delivery. 

Failure to meet industry needs The University has undertaken extensive consultation to 
ensure that the Yr Egin project will match the 
requirements of the industry. Key stakeholder 
management to be undertaken extensively to ensure 
that the project continues to do so. 

Financial 

Failure to secure funding package Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan and 
financial profile is in place at outset. Written letters 
confirming all sources of funding to be in place at 
approval stage 

Rise in construction costs Construction cost increases have been adequately 
anticipated through the use of third party experts and will 
be integrated throughout the cost estimations for Yr 
Egin. The University will continue to provide adequate 
contingency for any unexpected increases. 
 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public 11,294.000 1,250.000 1,250.000 1,250.000 1,250.000 16,294,000 

Private £3,000,000 £0 £0 £0 £0 3,000,000 

City 
Deal 

£0 1.250.000 1.250.000 1.250.000 1.250.000 5,000,000 

TOTAL 14,294,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 24,294,000 

Page 62 Page 62



Page 27 of 42  

case business 
model 
 

(£) 

Dependencies  Planning consents 

 

Centre of Excellence in Next Generation Services (CENGS) 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

Total Cost  £55,500,000 City Deal  £23,000,000 

Description CENGS will provide a data analytics capability to turn world class data sourced innovation into 
commercial systems and solutions, establishing a leadership position for Wales and the UK.  
The Centre will operate from a purpose built facility which will offer incubation, laboratory and 
2nd stage space and will bridge the gap between research and innovation and the ability to 
launch, develop and grow commercial opportunities. 

Key Milestones 
Tbc - awaiting draft 
5 case model 
 
 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft business case shared with UKG / WG Qtr4 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr2 2019 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr2 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to 
the UKG/WG 

Qtr3 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the project Qtr3 2019 

Project Development 

WEFO match funding confirmation received Qtr1 2018 

Finalise project Tender Brief & Tender documentation Qtr1 2018 

Two stage procurement exercise to commence  Qtr4 2018 

Construction (contractor start - end) Qtr2 2019 –  
Qtr2 2020 

Construction Completion and building occupation Qtr1 2020 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting draft 
5 case model 

Description  
 

Mitigation  

Development 

The proposed facilities do not meet 
the needs of start-ups and RD&I 
businesses 

Early engagement with industry to ensure designs are 
appropriate to end users, with flexibility of design.  
 

Operational  

Unable to secure tenants to occupy 
the facility 
 

Existing and pipeline demand already identified and 
evidenced. On-going engagement with industry to 
advertise the proposed facility and cluster.  

Financial  

Failure to secure funding package Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan and 
financial profile is in place at outset. Written letters 
confirming all sources of funding to be in place at 
approval stage 

Page 63Page 63



Page 28 of 42  

Revenue implications post 
completion 

Operational business plan in development.  Anticipated 
self-sustaining after 5 years.  

Implementation 

Delays in procuring or delivering 
contract 

Timely engagement of contractor and realistic 
programme developed.  

Project outputs / outcomes not 
achieved 

Benefits realisation plan in development.  

Resource implications of delivery 
 

Experienced project team in place with additional 
project manager to be appointed.  

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model 

Capital & Revenue  

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL(£) 

Public 0 3,000,000 0 2,500,000 0 5,500,000 

Private 2,000,000 3,500,000 5,750,000 6,750,000 9,000,000 27,000,000 

City Deal 2,500,000 6,500,000 4,750,000 5,250,000 4,000,000 23,000,000 

Total  
(£) 

4,500,000 13,000,000 10,500,000 14,500,000 13,000,000 55,500,000 

Dependencies Planning consents 
 

 

 

9.2 SBCD Theme - Internet of Life Science and Well-being 

 

Life Science and Well-being Campuses 

Project 

Authority Lead 

City and County of Swansea 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

Swansea University 

Total Cost £45,000,000 City Deal  £15,000,000 

Description The Life Science and Wellbeing Campus project will build upon the successful Institute of 
Life Science initiative, providing a world-class integrated research & business incubator/park 
secondary/tertiary clinical, research and trials environment, and skills development centres 
with a life science innovation hub being created in a hospital setting. This will strengthen the 
region’s capacity to commercialise research, attract additional inward investment, and 
further increase the export of high value services and goods, such as medical devices. 

Key Milestones 
Tbc - awaiting draft 
5 case model 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Review of Outline Business Case Qtr1 2018 

Completed options appraisal  Qtr1 2018 

Draft Full Business Case  Qtr2 2018 

Partner Review of FBC  Qtr2 2018 

Initial draft version 5 case business plan shared with UKG / WG Qtr3 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr2 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to 
the UKG/WG 

Qtr2 2019 

Page 64 Page 64



Page 29 of 42  

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the project Qtr3 2019 

Project Development & Delivery 

Phase 1 – Singleton Campus 

Initial pre-development assessment undertaken Qtr2 2017 

Modelling of growth of activity – need and demand assessment Qtr1 2018 

Predevelopment study complete Qtr3 2018 

Prior information notice issued Qtr3 2018 

Establish initial skills zone within existing estate in partnership Qtr3 2018 

Establish initial technology development space within existing estate Qtr3 2018 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting draft 
5 case model 

Description  
 

Mitigation  

Development 

Failure to ensure stakeholder buy-in 
to project concept 

Project to have regular engagement with key 
stakeholders including ABMU, Swansea University, 
private sector and SBCD Programme Board and 
Joint Committee.  

Delay in Swansea University 
decision making and internal 
governance procedures 

Reviewed at SU project development board 
regularly.  

Implementation 

Procurement delays Make use of existing procurement frameworks.  

Appropriateness of partnering 
arrangements  

Make use of existing procurement frameworks. 

Operational 

Project fails to meet City Deal 
outputs  

Project M&E Plan in place at project start. Regular 
review and monitoring - IoHWB leadership. 

Operation of new facilities - 
laboratory environments  

Integrate with existing operations. 

Failure to secure commercial 
tenants  

End User discussions taking place. 

Financial 

Failure to secure funding package Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan 
and financial profile is in place at outset. Written 
letters confirming all sources of funding to be in 
place at approval stage 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total (£) 

Public 5,000,000 10,000,000 5,000,000 0 0 20,000,000 

Private 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 10,000,000 

City 
Deal 

2,500,000 2,500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 0 15,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

9,500,000 14,500,000 12,000,000 7,000,000 2,000,000 45,000,000 

Dependencies Planning Consent 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65Page 65



Page 30 of 42  

Life Science and Well-being Village 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Project 

Delivery Lead 

Carmarthenshire County Council 

Total Cost £199,500,000 City Deal £40,000,000 

Description The Llanelli Life Science and Wellbeing Village aims to deliver transformational social and 
economic benefits through delivering the full scope of integration between business 
development, education, wellness initiatives, research and development and healthcare 
initiatives. The project will create a physical hub in Llanelli comprised of an institute of life 
science, a wellness hub, a variety of high quality flats and houses, a care home, a life 
science and well-being centre a leisure centre and a high end wellness hotel. The village 
will provide space for research and development of new medical devices and healthcare 
technologies alongside opportunities for training, service provision and recreation. The 
requirements for this are being developed in conjunction with partners such as health boards 
and universities.  

Milestones Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft business case shared with UKG / WG  Qtr4 2017 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG  Qtr4 2018 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project to be submitted 
to the UKG/WG 

Qtr1 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the project Qtr1 2019 

Project Development 

Phase 1 

Undertake preparatory works on-site Qtr2 2017 

Competitive Dialogue procurement exercise complete 
Collaboration Agreement signed 

Qtr1 2018 
Qtr3 2018 

Phase 2 

Launch public exhibition 
Pre-Application Consultation (Outline Planning) 
Submission of outline planning 
Partner consultations on service change proposals 

Qtr3 2017 
Qtr1 2018 
Qtr1 2018 
From Qtr1 2018 

Phase 3 
Establish JV governance structure 
Appoint a Development Partner 
Finalise business/service plans 
Commence building works 

 
From Qtr2 2018 
Qtr3 2018  
From Qtr3 2018  
Qtr1 2019 

Phase 4 

Services / businesses setting up on site (Phase 1) Qtr1 2021 

‘Soft launch’ (Phase 1) 
Post Implementation Review 

Qtr1 2021 
Qtr3 2021 

Risks Description  
 

Mitigation  

Site Planning – environmental, ecological, 
land and other infrastructure planning 
issues could, potentially delay the project 

External consultants have been engaged to 
undertake a range of environmental studies 
required to evidence a planning application 
and to detail any remedial action required.  

Page 66 Page 66



Page 31 of 42  

or as a worst case scenario result in 
project cessation 

Partner communication and 
understanding 

A full Communications and Engagement 
Strategy has been prepared, which prescribes 
early and frequent public involvement in the 
development of the Village and wherever a 
change to existing service configuration is 
proposed. Engagement will continue in line 
with both statutory and best practice 
guidelines. 

Revenue streams Business planning is underway with the Health 
Boards to achieve a revenue neutral solution 
with a projection of revenue savings over the 
15 year City Deal programme. 

Failure to achieve a whole site vision to 
maximise benefits the Village aims to 
combine skills and training, with business 
development, research and health 
initiatives.  

The complexity of the aims and the range of 
partners required to develop this integrated 
network brings with it significant challenges. 
The Project Board and PMO to ensure that 
private, public and third sector partners are 
engaged and that opportunities for joint 
working and facilities provision are maximised. 

Health provision - inability to provide a 
modern, sustainable workforce; to deliver 
to full service specification. 

Accredited training programmes developed 
onsite will proactively interface with schools 
and colleges (for example, Destination NHS) 
and will be designed to meet the needs for 
modernised work programmes and provide a 
retained and sustainable health workforce. 

Revenue streams Business planning is underway with the Health 
Boards to achieve a revenue neutral solution 
with a projection of revenue savings over the 
15 year City Deal programme. 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2022/23 TOTAL(£) 

Public 13,000,000 12,000,000 7,000,000 0 0 32,000,000 

Private 15,000,000 63,500,000 42,000,000 7,000,000 0 127,500,000 

City 
Deal 

8,500,000 15,000,000 16,500,000 0 0 40,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

36,500,000 90,500,000 65,500,000 7,000,000 0 199,500,000 

Dependencies This project forms part of the overall new Life Science & Well-being Village in Delta Lakes, 
Llanelli. 
Planning Consent 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67Page 67



Page 32 of 42  

9.3 SBCD Theme - Internet of Energy 

 

Homes as Power Stations 

Regional 

Project 

Authority 

Lead 

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

Project 

Delivery 

Lead 

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

Total Cost £517,050,000 City Deal:  £15,000,000 

Description: The project will create a new industry based around innovative and sustainable energy 
generation, combined with storage and efficiency. New technologies developed will be applied 
within the region, allowing homes and buildings to generate, store, and release their own 
energy. The project will undertake a new house building programme and retrofit programmes 
which will utilise such technologies whilst developing new supply chains in this sector. The 
project will also address fuel poverty, which remains a persistent challenge for many 
communities across the region.  The project will also focus on broadband Internet connections 
and smart metering, with support from the Digital Infrastructure project. 

Milestones 

Tbc - awaiting 
draft 5 case 
model 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft Strategic Case shared with RO Qtr3 2018 

Initial draft business case shared with UKG/WG  Qtr3 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr3 2019 

Business case submitted to the 4 Councils Qtr3 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme Board 
and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to the 
UKG/WG 

Qtr3 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the project Qtr1 2020 

Project Development 

Regional Stakeholder Workshops  Qtr1 2018 

Regional Local Authority Steering and Working established to coordinate the 
regional activity at scale 

Qtr2 2018 

Regional Social Landlord engagement  Qtr4 2017 

Initiated pathfinder/proof of concept development at Neath (Hafod Site) Qtr4 2017 

Planning approved for Hafod Site -  due to commence on site Qtr3 2018 

Consultants engaged to assist in development of the 5 case business 
model 
 
 

Qtr2 2018 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting 
draft 5 case 
model 

Description 
 

Mitigation 

Development 

Land costs and availability Project to ensure that local authorities provide a land 
bank. 

Supply chain development Robust supply chain strategy and on-going industry 
engagement plan in place. 

Page 68 Page 68



Page 33 of 42  

Approved design specification Development and implementation of a holistic, 
flexible, industry approved design standards. 

Operational 

Supply chain capacity and capability Robust supply chain strategy and on-going industry 
engagement plan to be in place. 

Appropriate land availability Ensure that local authorities provide a sizeable land 
bank. 

Not achieving new build targets Ensure effective programme planning. 

Insufficient capacity to deliver the 
programme 

Ensure that the right levels of skills and experience 
are in place -experienced regional project team and 
manager, robust stakeholder management/ 
coordination. 

Financial 

Failure to secure funding package Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan 
and financial profile is in place at outset. Written 
letters confirming all sources of funding to be in 
place at approval stage 

Significant changes in the funding 
package, including public and private 
sector match funding.  

Ensure commitment of match funding partners 
through signed partner funding letters in place at 
project approval stage. The delivery profile and 
associated match funding components to be 
monitored on a regular basis to ensure that it is in 
line with the agreed financial profile.  

Implementation 

Deliverability of HAPs within the City 
Deal programme timeframe. 

Detailed time bound project delivery proposals for 
HAPs to be set out in the 5 case business model 

Slippage including delays in 
procurement / delivering contracts 

All work detailed in the programme plan will be 
subject to a regular, on-going process of 
performance review. The benefits realisation plan 
will also be monitored and reviewed on a regular 
basis. 

Project management to deliver the 
agreed activities and results.  

Dedicated project management and delivery team to 
be appointed at the outset of the project to ensure 
effective implementation of the programme.  

Complex nature of retrofit Robust and detailed implementation and delivery 
plan will be formulated to ensure that an approved 
and tested retrofit approach is set in place.  

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these 
figures are 
subject to 
change during 
development 
and approval of 
the 5 case 
business model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public 6,425,000 14,075,000 22,950,000 31,900,000 43,800,000 119,150,000 

Private 23,075,000 47,675,000 73,050,000 102,600,000 136,500,000 382,900,000 

City 
Deal 

2,900,000 4,400,000 4,400,000 3,000,000 300,000 15,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

32,400,000 66,150,000 100,400,000 137,500,000 180,600,000 517,050,000 

Depend- 
encies 

Availability of sizeable local authority land banks across the region 
Planning Consents 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 69Page 69



Page 34 of 42  

Pembroke Dock Marine 

Project Authority 

Lead 

Pembrokeshire County Council 

Project Delivery 

Lead 

Milford Haven Port Authority 

Total Cost £76,320,001  City Deal  £28,000,000 

Description The project will involve the development of a marine energy test area utilising the deep 
port of Milford Haven, an energy engineering centre of excellence, and a wave energy 
demonstration zone. By creating a cluster of resources, knowledge, and capabilities, 
Pembroke Marine will accelerate technology development, enhancing the sector’s 
success and ensuring continued investment and development in test sites on a regional, 
Welsh and UK scale. 

Milestones 
Tbc - awaiting revised 
business case 

 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft business case shared with UKG / WG  Qtr4 2017 

Revised business case shared with UKG / WG Qtr3 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr1 2019 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission 
to the UKG/WG 

Qtr2 2019 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the 
project 

Qtr3 2019 

Project Development 

Amion Consultants engaged to develop 5 case business model Qtr1 2018 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting revised 
business case 

 
 
 

Description  
 

Mitigation  

Development & Delivery 

One or more of the 4 PDM 
project partners withdraws from 
the project 

Memorandum of Understanding/SLA to be signed by 
each of the 4 project partners and to be in place at 
the outset of the PDM project - this document to be 
approved by the Project Authority Lead.  Funding 
Approval letter in place between Project Lead and 
Project Authority Lead.  

Development 

  

Environmental/ecological/ 
archaeological constraints 

Project to appoint specialist planning consultant to 
work with relevant planning/consenting agencies 
and ensure any findings and necessary mitigating 
measures are incorporated into outline planning 
application report  

Implementation  

Deliverability of PDM within the 
City Deal programme timeframe. 

Detailed time bound project delivery proposals for 4 
elements of PDM to be set out in the 5 case business 
model. 

Delay/failure to secure required 
consents 

Early engagement with consenting authorities and 
key stakeholders Project to appoint specialist 
consultants where appropriate. Ensure key consent 
milestones and interdependencies are included in 
project schedule and monitored closely.  Project to 

Page 70 Page 70



Page 35 of 42  

carry out comprehensive surveys, where 
appropriate, and include findings and necessary 
mitigating measures in consent applications 

Failure to ensure stakeholder 
buy-in to project concept 

Project engaging with local community through 
public exhibitions, liaison groups etc., to ensure that 
stakeholders are fully informed of impacts and there 
is opportunity for concerns to be addressed where 
possible.  

Operational 

Failure to attract developers/end 
users  

Project partners to undertake market research to 
assess need and identify end user requirements. 

Financial 

Failure to secure funding 
package 

Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan 
and financial profile is in place at outset. Written 
letters confirming all sources of funding to be in 
place at approval stage 

Increase in design and 
construction costs 

Ensure detailed costs in place for the all 4 elements 
of this project.  Prepare Tender in line with agreed 
budgets.  Ensure project manager is in place from 
outset. Allow for a suitable contingency in the 
financial profile. 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these 
figures are 
subject to 
change 
during 
development 
and approval 
of the 5 case 
business 
model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public ,480,000 4,480,000 4,480,000 4,480,000 4,480,000 22,400,000 

Private 5,184,000 5,184,000 5,184,000 5,184,000 5,184,001 25,900,001 

City 
Deal 

5,600,000 5,600,000 5,600,000 5,600,000 5,600,000 28,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

152,640,000 152,640,000 152,640,000 152,640,000 152,640,001 76,320,001 

Constraints State Aid Rules 

Dependencies 

 

There are 4 elements to this project, each led by a different organisation. 
ERDF funding for PDI, MEECE, & PDZ. 
Planning Consents 
 

 

9.4 SBCD Theme - Smart Manufacturing 

 

Factory of the Future  

Project 

Authority Lead 

Neath Port Talbot County Borough Council 

Project Delivery 

Lead 

Swansea University 

Total Cost £23,521,686 City Deal £10,000,000 

Description This initiative will support inward investment in leading edge technologies and harness the 
opportunities associated with a digital manufacturing revolution. Informed by industry 4.0 
principles, and supported by world class industrial innovators, this initiative will put the 

Page 71Page 71



Page 36 of 42  

region and its enterprises at the forefront of this digital and data based manufacturing 
movement creating a regional integrated manufacturing ecosystem making use of the hub- 
spoke model and digital infrastructure improvements to connect spokes to a main hub based 
in Swansea University. 

Key Milestones Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft business case shared with UKG / WG  Qtr1 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr4 2019 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr1 2020 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to 
the UKG/WG 

Qtr2 2020 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the 
project 

Qtr2 2020 

Project Development 

Finalise location Qtr3 2018 

Formalise project designs Qtr3 2018 

Procurement process commences build Qtr3 2018 

Contractor appointed Qtr3 2018 

Commence building work Qtr2 2019 

New Centre Opens Qtr3 2020 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting 
revised business 
case 

Description 
 

Mitigation 

Development 

Delay in planning conditions/ 
consent. 

Early engagement with stakeholders and consent 
authorities to raise any issues early on. 

Delay in procurement of contractor Utilise existing procurement frameworks. Early 
engagement with contractors to identify issues which 
may cause delay and require specialist input. Monitor 
and review progress of contractor through his 
procurement process.  

Operational 

Centre does not suit end-user 
needs 

Regular design meetings involving end-users at initial 
design and fit-out stage. Early identification of supply 
chain. 

Financial 

Failure to secure funding package Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan 
and financial profile is in place at outset. Written 
letters confirming all sources of funding to be in place 

at approval stage. 
Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model  

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public 694,577 2,019,078 2,753,095 2,408,787 2,428,086 10,303,623 

Private 0 450,000 900,000 922,500 945,563 3,218,063 

City 
Deal 

5,217,011 2,314,980 645,710 661,852 1,160,447 10,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

5,911,588 4,784,058 4,298,805 3,993,139 4,534,096 23,521,686 

Dependencies Planning Consent 
 

  

Page 72 Page 72



Page 37 of 42  

Steel Science 

Project 

Authority Lead 

Neath Port Talbot 

Project Delivery 

Lead 

Swansea University 

Total Cost £80,000,000 City Deal  £20,000,000 

Description This project will lead to the creation of The National Steel Innovation Centre (NSIC), in the 
Neath Port Talbot Unitary Authority. This project will provide access to world-class facilities 
for the development of innovative steel products and processes and opportunities for 
collaboration between co-located industrial and academic partners which, when combined, 
will create a sustainable Steel Industry fit for the 21st Century. Additionally, it will place the 
opportunity for innovation and research within the reach of SMEs who would otherwise 
struggle to resource intensive PhD-level academic researchers, and allow them to bring this 
research to the market place. 

Key Milestones 
Tbc - awaiting 5 
case model 

Activity Date (using 
calendar year) 

Business Case Development 

Initial draft version 5 case business plan shared with UKG / WG Qtr4 2018 

Final review of draft version business case by UKG / WG Qtr4 2019 

Business case submitted to the Council Qtr1 2020 

Business case submitted to Economic Strategy Board, Programme 
Board and Joint Committee for Approval of the project submission to 
the UKG/WG 

Qtr2 2020 

UKG/WG approval of the release of Government Funding to the 
project 

Qtr2 2020 

Project Development 

Finalise location Qtr3 2018 

Formalise project designs Qtr3 2018 

Procurement process commences build Qtr3 2018 

Contractor appointed Qtr3 2018 

Commence building work Qtr2 2019 

New Centre Opens Qtr3 2020 

Risks 
Tbc - awaiting 5 
case model 

Description  
 

Mitigation  

Developmental  

Plans not approved  Engage with the local authority to understand any 
potential issues early on in the process. Engage 
planning specialists to make sure plans are in 
accordance with planning laws. 

Unable to acquire suitable land Ensure alternative solutions are developed using 
existing options. 

No suitable procurement bids 
 

Ensure in-depth planning and specification, and 
consult with market prior to commencement of tender 
process. 

Operational Risks 

Revenue falls below plan 
 

Develop engagement plan with key industry 
stakeholders to share success and encourage 
industry memberships.  Seek funding opportunities 
through collaboration. 

Page 73Page 73



Page 38 of 42  

Industry consolidation  Continue to monitor the sector and understand 
developments and adjust centre operations and 
research focus to best suit industry requirements. 

Financial Risks 

Failure to secure funding package Ensure credible and robust detailed business plan 
and financial profile is in place at outset. Written 
letters confirming all sources of funding to be in place 
at approval stage. 

Project overspend Develop detailed project plans, ensure costed items 
are agreed by all key stakeholders. Hold regular 
budget review meetings to ensure visibility of spend 
at all times and early intervention if budget is in 
danger of being exceeded. 

Financial 
Profile 
Note - these figures 
are subject to 
change during 
development and 
approval of the 5 
case business 
model 

 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 TOTAL (£) 

Public 12,000,000 12,000,000 16,000,000 20,000,000 0 60,000,000 

Private 0 0 0 0 0 0 

City 
Deal 

7,000,000 7,000,000 6,000,000 0 0 20,000,000 

TOTAL 
(£) 

19,000,000 19,000,000 22,000,000 20,000,000 0 80,000,000 

Dependencies Planning Consent 
 

 
 
 
10.0 Interdependencies & Project Synergies 
 
10.1 Interdependencies 
 
Interdependence 1 - The SBCD Skills and Talent Initiative Project & The Internet Coast 

 

 

 
The aim of the City Deal proposal is to create an uplift in GVA closing the ever-increasing gap 
between regional and national averages.  In order to achieve this, the development of a 
workforce that is capable, responsive and skilled is key. The 11 projects share this 
commonality in objective and each will create opportunities for the regions current and future 
workforce.  

Page 74 Page 74



Page 39 of 42  

 
The Skills and Talent Initiative will be instrumental in determining the skills needs of the 10 
remaining projects and, in turn, will support regional education providers to deliver the skills 
solutions required.  It is anticipated that skills will broadly be required in, but not limited to, the 
areas of ICT and digital, health and manufacturing and engineering, aligning closely to the 
four themes of the SBCD programme. There will be opportunities for the transferability of skills 
between projects and therefore across the region, creating a thriving talent base.  
 
Undeniably, underpinning each of the projects, therefore, is skills and talent, a theme that runs 
strongly throughout and which will determine the overall success of the City Deal Programme.  
The right people with the right skills, available in the region at the right time is the most 
important consideration and challenge for the City Deal.  Without a strong, capable and flexible 
workforce the SBCD projects would struggle to deliver the programme outcomes and therefore 
not have the transformational effect it aims to achieve.  
 
A further key determinant of success is the preparedness and capability of future generations 

to capitalise on the opportunities presented by the proposal. The Skills & Talent Initiative 

recognises that it is essential that younger generations are well-informed, creating a 

sustainable pipeline of talent which is ready and able to support and further develop the future 

economy of the Swansea Bay City Region.   

It is therefore the intention of the Skills & Talent Initiative to foster the themes of 

entrepreneurship and digital innovation given their strategic importance to the Swansea Bay 

City Deal Programme, and to work with key stakeholders to align provision to these key 

themes.  As such, these two areas will be focussed on in schools and, increasingly so, in 

further and higher education institutions.  

In addition, there is opportunity for synergy in terms of skills between the four themes at a 
more specific level: namely, Energy, Life Science & Wellbeing and Smart Manufacturing are 
of critical strategic importance in their own right, but through the City Deal they are 
interconnected and mutually supportive.  
 
The 21st Century is a multidisciplinary age transcending sectors and the majority of innovative 
solutions to the most pressing challenges reside in the collision of disciplines. The further and 
higher education institutions operating within the region already have an exemplary offer of 
provision within these areas.  Aligning their offer more closely to the specific needs of the City 
Deal and identifying where there are opportunities for multi-disciplinary teaching will create 
skilled individuals with the transferable skills needed to work across the region. 
 
Interdependence 2 - The Internet of Economic Acceleration and its Constituent Projects  
 
The proposal and its constituent projects are built on a solid foundation characterised by an 
advanced digital infrastructure.  A lack of an effective and reliable next generation digital 
infrastructure will hinder the development and exploitation of new technologies and 
capabilities which could negatively impact and hinder the success of key projects. The level 
of interdependency varies across the projects with some relying on digital elements more than 
others. 
 
Primarily, the successful implementation of the Digital Infrastructure project will allow for the 
establishment of 5G testbeds that will enable innovation and entrepreneurship, themes which 
are especially crucial for the Centre of Excellence in Next Generation Services, Yr Egin and 
the Swansea City and Waterfront Digital District. A lack of these testbeds would create 
significant barriers to the attraction and retention of the talent, businesses, key industry leaders 
and inward investment to the area which are crucial to the success of those projects.  
 

Page 75Page 75



Page 40 of 42  

Interdependence 3 - The Internet of Economic Acceleration and the Internet of Energy 
 
An innovative digital infrastructure is particularly pertinent for the Homes as Power Stations 
project. Imperative to the proposal is the utilisation of the internet to create innovative and 
sustainable energy generation combined with storage and efficiency, this will be supported by 
the use of smart metering. The effective use of smart metering is integral to the proposal as it 
will allow users to manage their own usage and assist in the measurement of the efficiencies 
achieved within the region both at a personal and national level.  
 
Interdependence 4 - The Internet of Economic Acceleration and the Internet of Life 
Science and Wellbeing  
 
The developments proposed by both the Life Science and Wellbeing Campus and Village 
projects are heavily reliant on an innovative digital infrastructure.  A lack of this infrastructure 
would hinder the projects desires of utilising advanced technologies to develop new medical 
devices and further develop healthcare technologies. 
  
Interdependence 5 - The Internet of Economic Acceleration and Smart Manufacturing 
 
Both the Factory of the Future and the Steel Science projects are reliant on the use of next 
generation technologies. The Factory of the Future project is closely aligned to the principles 
of Industry 4.0 which is based on the themes of automation and data exchange in 
manufacturing technologies.  
 
Further dimensions include cyber-physical systems, the Internet of things, cloud computing 
and cognitive computing. These are all elements which require a strong digital infrastructure, 
without it the project could fail to capitalise on the digital manufacturing revolution 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 76 Page 76



Page 41 of 42  

10.2 Synergies 

 
Synergy 1 - Energy and Life Science & Wellbeing  

 
 
The economic profile of Wales has historically been shifting from a manufacturing dominated 
base resulting in more of an emphasis on fostering economic growth, development and social 
inclusion whilst ensuring that natural assets continue to provide the resources on which our 
wellbeing relies. This places what is termed as the green economy in a key position within the 
City Deal proposal as the four themes align closely to wellbeing, the environment, 
manufacturing and economic growth.  
 
The Environmental and resource productivity of the economy aligns closely to the Homes as 
Power Stations and Pembroke Dock Marine projects with both aiming to produce sustainable 
energy. The production of green energy has a positive impact on the environmental climate 
as green energy production generates little if any of the water and air pollution associated with 
traditional fossil fuel energy sources which a Harvard University study suggests costs public 
health services an estimated $74.6billion a year.  Therefore production of green energy can 
directly affect the health and wellbeing of individuals living and working in the region by 
reducing the risk of cardiovascular and respiratory diseases associated with traditional energy 
production. This direct link creates synergy with the Life Science and Wellbeing Campus and 
Village projects.  
 
In addition, fuel poverty is a key determinant for life science and wellbeing, the Homes as 
Power Stations programme will specifically undertake research which will deliver impact and 
create an evidence base in support of disruptive innovation where the region has a global 
reputation as a centre of excellence.   
 
Synergy 2 - Energy and Smart Manufacturing  
 

 

Page 77Page 77



Page 42 of 42  

The Steel Science project will also be in a prime position to have a significant impact on the 
Green Growth agenda. As well as developing and implementing ultra-low carbon steel making 
technologies, the new materials, products and processes created at the Centre will provide 
the opportunity to radically rethink the built environment for energy generating services. This 
will improve the regional natural asset base promoting the implementation of good 
environmental management in primary industries. This substantiates its synergy to Homes as 
Power Stations and Pembroke Dock Marine where materials and products may be shared and 
developed.  
 
Furthermore, the Pembroke Dock Marine programme builds on momentum already underway 
regionally, in developing innovative marine energy solutions. This technology will require a 
local manufacturing base which builds upon the heavy engineering and steel generating 
capability of the region. Additionally, Homes as Power Stations provides the opportunity to 
expand existing pilot activities across the UK steel sector to realise in excess of a £1 billion 
industry, transforming the built environment. This extends from smart coatings on steel 
substrates through to innovative storage and control.  

 

Synergy 3 - SMART Manufacturing and Life Science & Well-Being 

 

 
The connections between manufacturing and life science and well-being are long established 
but the introduction of smart life science and smart manufacturing have placed more 
importance on this relationship in recent years. The projects of the Life Science and Wellbeing 
Village and Campuses and the Factory of the Future and Steel Science projects are the 
opportune prospect to align the two areas.   
 
The region already has examples of Life Science and Wellbeing innovation created locally, 
manufactured locally and exported from the region to global markets. Examples include 
therapeutic devices, diagnostic devices and consumer products. The Factory of the Future is 
being specifically designed to build upon this experience and interconnect value and supply 
chains within a manufacturing cloud retaining optimum economic value for the region and UK. 
The Steel Science Centre will create new materials, products and processes, many of which 
will have applications in Life Science & Wellbeing. This will provide the opportunity to shape 
the development of intelligent sterile environments, supporting disruptive technologies for 
telehealth such as smart wearables and intelligent dressings.  
 
The demand for next generation health care and smarter ways of manufacturing highlights the 
parallels between the two, they are both areas which are in transformation and where new 
opportunities in IT to meet demands are creating more opportunities for closer working. 

Page 78 Page 78



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018

JOINT COMMITTEE - ANNUAL COSTS BUDGET

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To approve the 2018/19 to 2020/21 3-year rolling budget as set out in the 
Joint Committee Agreement and to approve indicative budgets for the 
following 2 years 2021/22 and 2022/23. 

REASONS: 

To agree, in accordance with the Joint Committee Agreement, a three year and 
annual budget. 

Report Author:

Chris Moore
Director of Corporate Services

Designation:

Joint Committee S151 Officer 
Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 
01267 224120
EMail:. 
CMoore@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 79

Agenda Item 9

Page 79



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

JOINT COMMITTEE - ANNUAL COSTS BUDGET

The Councils have agreed that Carmarthenshire County Council will act as the Accountable 
Body responsible for discharging the Councils’ Obligations in relation to the Swansea Bay City 
Deal in accordance with the Joint Committee Agreement.  

Carmarthenshire County Council is required to provide an annual costs budget for approval.

Clause 19 of the Joint Agreement details the process for agreeing costs:- 

“19.1 Three Year and Annual Budget 

(a) The Joint Committee shall agree a budget for the Accountable Body costs, ESB costs, 
Joint Committee costs, Joint Scrutiny Committee costs, Programme Board costs and 
Regional Office costs on a rolling 3 year basis. The Joint Committee shall review this 
budget annually and shall agree the Annual Costs Budget each year with the year 1 
being confirmed and years 2 and 3 being indicative.

19.2 Internal Costs

(a) The Internal Costs incurred by each Council for a project in its own area shall be 
borne in the first instance by the Council providing that internal resource but may 
subsequently be included as costs within a Project Business Case.

(b) If the Regional Office undertakes work to assist the development of an individual 
project the costs incurred may be included in the Project Business Case.

(b) All Internal Costs for a Regional Project shall be agreed by the Regional Lead Body.

The Internal Costs incurred for a Regional Project shall be paid by the Project Authority Lead 
for the project.  The Project Authority Lead for each project shall make provision for 
reimbursement of its Internal Costs in the business case it submits to the Regional Office for 
the project

Page 80 Page 80



19.3 Accounts

(a) The Accountable Body shall prepare accounts for any Accountable Body, Joint 
Committee, Economic Strategy Board, Programme Board, Joint Scrutiny Committee 
and Regional Office costs incurred for the relevant accounting periods

19.4 Annual Costs Budget

(a) The Annual Costs Budget for Years 1-5 shall be funded from the £50,000 paid by each 
Council each year. The funding of the Annual Costs Budget for future years shall be a 
matter for the Constituent Authorities to agree.

(b) Costs in the Annual Costs Budget not funded from Council Contributions shall be 
recovered as project costs.

(c) The Joint Committee shall if necessary consider and recommend to the Councils 
alternative funding options for the Annual Costs Budget. The Councils shall decide 
whether or not to agree to alternative funding options proposed by the Joint 
Committee.”

The attached report sets out the 2018/19 to 2020/21 3-year rolling budget as set out in the 
Joint Committee Agreement and indicative budgets for the following 2 years 2021/22 and 
2022/23. 

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 81Page 81



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES YES NONE NONE

Legal
The Joint Committee Agreement stipulates the process for agreeing the Annual Costs Budget 
and indicative Budget for years 2 & 3.

Finance 
Draft budget presented as per requirement of JCA. 
Budgets provided identify estimated costs and contributions from Joint Committee Partners and 
projects. 
Funding mechanism for the SBCD project contributions to be agreed with LA partners.

Page 82 Page 82



CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 83Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



23rd August, 2018

Draft Swansea Bay City Deal 5 years Operational Budget 2018/19 - 2022/23

2018/2019

£

2019/2020

£

2020/2021

£

2021/2022

£

 2022/2023    

£

TOTAL

£

372,131 388,968 398,886 408,471 417,990 1,986,447

38,566 40,890 42,259 43,581 44,895 210,192

66,239 69,236 71,002 72,708 74,402 353,588

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000

15,000 15,450 15,914 16,391 16,883 79,637

2,400 2,472 2,546 2,623 2,701 12,742

600 618 637 656 676 3,186

10,500 0 0 0 0 10,500

500 500 500 500 500 2,500

1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 9,000

17,820 17,820 17,820 17,820 17,820 89,100

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000

Finance support 48,915 49,893 50,891 51,909 52,947 254,556

25,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 25,000 80,000

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 50,000

20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 60,000

1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 5,000

150,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 650,000

204,246 84,343 58,536 43,107 12,702 402,933

1,001,717 844,991 833,790 832,565 831,316 4,344,380

25,000 25,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 155,000

113,093 114,270 115,471 116,695 117,944 577,473

103,849 103,849 103,849 103,849 103,849 519,247

241,943 243,120 254,320 255,545 256,794 1,251,720

1,890 1,890 1,890 1,890 1,890 9,450

1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 6,000

25,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 65,000

Joint Scrutiny 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 100,000

1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 9,000

49,890 34,890 34,890 34,890 34,890 189,450

1,293,550 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 5,785,550

113,550 0 0 0 0 113,550

57,000 0 0 0 0 57,000

723,000 723,000 723,000 723,000 723,000 3,615,000

400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 2,000,000

1,293,550 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 1,123,000 5,785,550

4 LAs x £50k 200

2 Unis x £50k 100

2 HBs x £50k 100

400

Expenditure 

Printing & Copying

Fees

Translation/Interpret Services

Regional Office 

Training of Staff

Rents General

Electricity

Gas

Furniture

Response Maintenance

Regional Office Total

Pay - NJC

National Insurance

Superannuation

Public Transport - Staff

Subsistence & Meetings Expenses

Promotions, Marketing & Advertising

Contingency

Staff Travelling Expenses

Admin, Office & Operational Consumables

ICTs & Computer Hardware

SBCD Project Contribution

Partner Contributions based on 5yrs

Meeting Expenses

Room Hire

Fees

Balance C/F from previous year

Project contributions based on the 1.5% contribution - final contribution mechanism to be agreed

Wales Audit Office

Total Expenditure

Joint Committee 

Accountable Body 

Finance Services Support (inclusive of Section 151 Officer)

Legal and Democratic Support (inclusive of Monitoring Officer)

Accountable Body Total

Total Income

Travel

Joint Committee Total

Funding Contributions

Welsh Government Grant Business Engagement (Confirmed)P
age 85

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 86



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION 
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018

CITY DEAL PROJECTS UPDATE

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To inform the Joint Committee of the current status of the projects funded 
under the Swansea Bay City Deal.

REASONS: 

To ensure that the Joint Committee is regularly kept up-to-date on the 
projects funded by the Swansea Bay City Deal. 

Report Author:

Helen Morgan

Designation:

Economic Development 
Manager 
Carmarthenshire County 
Council

Tel No. 
01267 224902
E.Mail:.L 
HLMorgan@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Page 87

Agenda Item 10

Page 87



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

CITY DEAL PROJECTS UPDATE

The report provides an update to the Joint Committee on the local and 
regional projects funded by the City Deal.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

Page 88 Page 88



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

Page 89Page 89



CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Page 90 Page 90



Page 1 of 3 

 
SBCD PROJECT PROGRESS UPDATE 
August 2018 
 
 

Digital Infrastructure – Regional – Lead Authority Carmarthenshire CC 

 
• Procurement exercise for additional support for development of the 5 case model has been 

completed - council will soon be entering into a contract with the successful candidate 
• Final version business case planned to be in place in the beginning of next year 
• Engagement with City Deal project leads and stakeholders continues to further detail the 

project 
• Regional funding bids will be submitted into DCMS’s 5G Test Bed Rural Connected 

Communities and the next LFFN bidding round - both opening later this year 
 
Initial draft Business Case to be submitted to RO - end November 2018 

 
 
Swansea City & Waterfront Digital District – Lead Authority Swansea Council 

 
Box Village  
• Advanced Private Sector funding secured to take forward the development brief  
• Construction planned to begin early next year  
•  

Innovation Precinct 
• Plans to be submitted by December 2018 
• Completion and occupation by March 2022 

  
Digital Village 
• Plans to be submitted by December 2018 
• Ducting laid within southern side of the Kingsway in readiness for fibre network 
• Completion of construction and occupation planned for December 2020 

  
Digital Square & Arena 
• Procurement of primary contractor for Digital Square & Arena finalising 
• Detailed Planning has been submitted for Swansea Central Phase 1 which includes the 

Arena and Square 
• Opening of the Arena planned for late 2020 

 
Revised draft Business Case submitted to UK & Welsh Governments for review and 
feedback on 19th July  

 

Yr Egin – Lead Authority Carmarthenshire CC 

 
• Phase 1 close to completion - anticipated S4C and other tenants moving into new offices in 

September  
• Phase 2 initial design to RIBA Stage 2 completed 
• Phase 2 Stage 1 ECI (Early Contractor Involvement) Contractor appointment under NEC3 

scheduled for December 2018 
• Completion of Phase 2 construction, fit out and occupation planned for early 2021 

 
Revised draft Business Case submitted to UK & Welsh Governments for review and 
feedback on 3rd August 

 

Page 91Page 91



Page 2 of 3 

CENGS – Lead Authority Neath Port Talbot CBC 

 
• Initial Draft Business Case in development 

 
• Swansea Bay Technology Centre (capital) 

• Two stage procurement exercise to commence end 2018  
• Construction period planned Spring 2019 - Spring 2020 

 
• CENGS operational (operational revenue) 

• Project will carry out a procurement exercise to appoint an organisation to run the 
CENGS organisation  

 
First Draft Business Case to be submitted to RO – December 2018 

 

Skills and Talent – Regional – Lead Authority Carmarthenshire CC 

 
• Meeting took place in June with both governments to discuss a phased approach to project 

delivery 
• Proposals for this phasing are being drawn up by Project Lead for agreement with both 

governments 
 
Revised Draft Business Case to be submitted to RO – September 2018 

 

Life Science and Well-being Campuses – Lead Authority Swansea Council 

 
• First draft Business Case submitted to Regional Office end July for initial review and feedback 

of comments 
• Project will focus on the two sites at Morriston and Singleton to create new Research, 

Development & Innovation facilities  
 

Initial draft business reviewed - Project Lead to send revised Business Case to Regional 
Office 

 

Life Science and Well-being Village – Lead Authority Carmarthenshire CC 

 
• Outline planning submitted to Carmarthenshire County Council  
• Planning decision anticipated September/October 
• Some enabling works at the Delta Lakes site are likely to start in September 2018 
• Outline proposals for concept and structural design of the two public sector components - the 

Wellness Hub and Community Health Hub buildings - are also being taken forward in coming 
months. 

 
Amended business case submitted to UK & Welsh Governments for review and feedback 
on 15th August 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92 Page 92



Page 3 of 3 

Homes as Power Stations – Regional Project – Lead Authority Neath Port Talbot CBC 

 
• Meetings taken place with key stakeholders  
• First draft Outline Business Case developed by Project Lead and submitted to RO in August  

 
Outline Business Case currently being reviewed by Regional Office 

 

Pembroke Dock Marine – Lead Authority Lead Pembrokeshire CC 

 
• Following feedback from the two governments, Amion Consulting have been procured to 

develop a revised 5 case business model  
• Revised 2nd draft business received by Regional Office beginning of August - feedback 

provided to Project Lead from Regional Office  
 

Revised Business Case submitted to RO 21st August - currently being reviewed by 
Regional Office  

 

Factory of the Future – Lead Authority Neath Port Talbot CBC 

 
• Following feedback from the governments in December 2017, Project Lead is revising the 

Business Case  
• Discussions still continue with NPT Council on finalising site location for the project 

 
Revised Business Case to be submitted to Regional Office - December 2018 

 

Steel Science – Lead Authority Neath Port Talbot CBC 

 
• Business Case undergoing revision 
• Discussions still continue with NPT Council on finalising site location for the project 

 
Revised Business Case to be submitted to Regional Office - December 2018 

 

Page 93Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



SWANSEA BAY CITY REGION
JOINT COMMITTEE 

31ST AUGUST 2018 

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS

RECOMMENDATIONS / KEY DECISIONS REQUIRED:

To agree a schedule of meetings for the next 6 months.

REASONS: 

In accordance with Part 9.1 of Schedule 1of the Joint Agreement (Terms of 
Reference of the Joint Committee)  the Joint Committee shall meet monthly 
initially until such point it agrees otherwise. Additional meetings may be called 
by the Chair at least seven clear days’ notice issued through the Regional 
Office.

To ensure that there is a clear programme of meetings diarised for the 
forthcoming year.

Report Author:

Linda Rees Jones

Gaynor Morgan

Designation:

Joint Committee Monitoring 
Officer - Carmarthenshire 
County Council

Democratic Services Manager - 
Carmarthenshire

Tel No. 
01267 224010
E. Mail 
Lrjones@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

01267 224026
GMorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Page 95

Agenda Item 11

Page 95



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
SWANSEA BAY CITY DEAL JOINT COMMITTEE

31ST AUGUST 2018

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS
 

To approve the schedule of meetings for the next 6 months:-

2:00 p.m.   23rd October 2018 Democratic Services Committee 
Room, County Hall, Carmarthen.

2:00 p.m.   22nd November 2018 Democratic Services Committee 
Room, County Hall, Carmarthen.

2:00 p.m.   14th December 2018 Democratic Services Committee 
Room, County Hall, Carmarthen.

2:00 p.m.   14th January 2019 Democratic Services Committee 
Room, County Hall, Carmarthen.

2:00 p.m.   28th February 2019 Democratic Services Committee 
Room, County Hall, Carmarthen.

 
DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? NO 

Page 96 Page 96



IMPLICATIONS

Policy, Crime & 
Disorder and 
Equalities

Legal Finance Risk Management Issues Staffing Implications

NONE YES NONE NONE NONE

Legal

It is a requirement of the Joint Agreement that the Joint Committee should meet monthly 
initially until a point it agrees otherwise.

Page 97Page 97



CONSULTATIONS
Details of any consultations undertaken are to be included here

None.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW
Title of Document File Ref 

No.
Locations that the papers are available for 
public inspection/WEBSITE LINK

Swansea Bay City Region Joint 
Agreement 

http://www.swanseabaycitydeal.wales/

Page 98 Page 98



Document is Restricted

Page 99

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Document is Restricted

Page 105

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Document is Restricted

Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Document is Restricted

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Page 105



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Document is Restricted

Page 115

By virtue of paragraph(s) 12 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.

Page 107



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108


	Agenda
	1 Agenda.

